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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a high investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of
investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, makes no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Sing Lee Software
(Group) Limited (the” Company”)(the” Directors”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief the information contained in this report is accurate
and complete in all material respects and not misleading or
deceptive and there are no other matters the omission of which
would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Corporate Information

nNAEEH
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Corporate Information
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the audited financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overall Business of the Group in 2017

The Group had recorded strong earnings for four consecutive
years since 2014 and witnessed a robust growth of 443%
in 2016. With the new strategy that focuses on a core
business and two complementary products, the Group
experienced significantly faster development in all aspects. The
Group recorded total earnings of RMB15,798,000 in 2017,
representing a year-on-year growth of 125%. The results
highlighted the clearer and more focused strategy, which
inevitably incurred higher costs.

Under the in-depth implementation of the new strategy, the
revenue growth experienced by the banking capital products
reflected the confidence of our clients and the more extensive
product research and marketing effort. Meanwhile, the
payment plus service product was basically aligned to the
demand for new generation products and innovations. Upon
consolidation of the two products, a much more rapid growth
is expected than in previous years, forming a structural, rolling
and networked business portfolio.
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Chairman’s Statement

TRE®mE

With the strong support from banks and third parties, the
Group’s payment methods became increasingly diversified. In
particular, we took an important step towards the development
of card-not-present (CNP) system. While the payment products
have become mass products, China, being the biggest
developing country with the largest population in the world,
has seen numerous online and offline payment methods,
reflecting the immense potential of the payment market. With
our in-depth industry knowledge, business transformation and
innovative mindset, market expansion remains the Group’s
primary goal. Meanwhile, in light of the structural reform in
the broader economy and continuous market adjustment, the
Group continued to expand the merchant service business
and offline markets by deepening the value-added services,
enhancing the service content and furthering cooperation
with banks in initiating projects targeting merchants and
cardholders. Formerly independent businesses were gradually
consolidated, and banking outsourcing service products and
payment products were integrated to form a business portfolio,
where the payment plus service products were integral to the
Group’s development.

The State Council and the People’s Bank continued to
strengthen the development and supervision of banking capital
products, resulting in a higher recognition of this niche market
by the broader financial market over the last two years. The
Group further deepened the cooperation in capital business
with leading share-based and urban commercial banks,
including the Bank of Beijing, Bank of Shanghai, Bank of
Nanjing, China Zheshang Bank and Huishang Bank. The trend,
which will become more obvious in the coming years, will
gradually change the banking sector’s capital system and the
existing revenue model. Therefore, the Group devoted more
efforts to the capital products to fully utilise our resources and
those available in the market. We also expanded our market
share rapidly so as to develop a more flexible business portfolio
and support the other complementary product.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

The normalised structural reform of China’s financial market
will present more opportunities and promote the growth of the
market. In this case, the Group may fine-tune the output ratios
and long-term development of our strategy to keep abreast
of the market developments. We strive to enhance capital
products and expand banking outsourcing service product mix
to introduce new integrated payment concept to users through
a dynamic business portfolio.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

As we further pursue the strategic goal, the business platform
evolved from the Group’s core operations and “Bank-School
Express” remain our main sources of big data. With the help
of these products, the Group will consolidate the big data,
personal behavioral data and the online and offline businesses
to form a unique OFFLINE TO ONLINE (020) model. We also
plan to extend the collaborative model with banks to other
commercial banks. Meanwhile, the business portfolio will be
better aligned to the overall development of the financial
environment.

The Group will continue to implement stringent cost control,
and strengthen the risk control over the overall operations
and individual business in order to achieve a virtuous circle of
identifying new revenue streams and lowering the costs.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the board of Directors, | would like to express
sincere gratitude to all shareholders for their support and to all
employees for their loyalty and dedication. In addition, | would
also like to extend heartfelt appreciation to our customers,
partners, suppliers and bankers for their trust and support.

Hung Yung Lai
Chairman

21 March 2018

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3

ERBESpmSNERENERRIETEKRIE
BBHREREZMIES  THLEREKX - 1t
B [—RER|EERUIINREER LK
REMHE  NERMESNER - SEREEN
RETEM  ETEIEREPIINE IR ER
b EFNEXNESRESER IR
TATHEEP -

RREE

BEE[—RER|BEEENTERA  BHER
EBERERNERTERBERBINDARER
TERERNRR - EHER - EEBIET
EXEH - BATTAERNGR LG TEBEE
& v A EETAIOFFLINE TO ONLINEE# 8,
HEMRTEENEEEXNTUEEDSEE
RIT- A HEZEFANBESE RMTE
BIRRENERTER -

ARG REBRIEHRA - LMAEER
BEEHHBARELE 25 [FRGR] e
" -

EE |
AANBRRESGO-EXHAEBZHER
ERENYE B THH - o RATREL

IAKEERE  AFEEH - HERRERRT
BARKEZEOREE - BARLREH -

E2
R Rt

—ZE-\§F=A=+—H

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iF|& 4 (£H) BRAERAF



8

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENBE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development and sales
of information and network technologies and services to the
financial industry in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Revenue of the Group comprises of:

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (“the financial
year”), the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
RMB79,168,000, an increase of 23% as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2016: approximately
RMB64,557,000).
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Revenue
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2017 2016
—E—tF AN S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMFT
Sales of software products HEBHE®R 12,525 8,717
Sales of related hardware products SHE AE R E (F EE 4,174 6,646
Provision of technical support services RN R RS 62,469 49,194
79,168 64,557

The increase in the turnover of the Group was mainly
attributable to the increase of 27% in the revenue of the
Group’s provision of technical support services when compared
to the same period of last year. The total revenue for the year
2017 mainly came from the provision of technical support
services. The source of total revenue for the year 2017 was the
same as that for the year of 2016.

Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2017 is
increased by 21% to approximately RMB41,218,000 (2016:
approximately RMB34,109,000). Cost of sales increased in
line with business activities. Gross profit margin was 48%
(2016: 47%) which remained stable. The Group has been
implementing the strict cost control and making the best
efforts to keep the current gross profit margin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENBE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2017 is increased by 45% to approximately RMB16,157,000
(2016: approximately RMB11,106,000). The increase in
administrative expenses were mainly due to the increase in
equity-settled share-based payment recognised which arising
from the grant of share option in April 2017 and increase in
staff cost. Distribution and selling expenses for the year ended
31 December 2017 is increased by 18% to approximately
RMB10,768,000 (2016: approximately RMB9,162,000). The
increase in distribution and selling expenses were mainly due to
the increase in equity-settled share-based payment recognised
which arising from the grant of share option in April 2017 and
increase in open card service fee. Other income mainly included
refund of value added tax, refund of personal income tax and
interest income; and other gains and losses mainly included
exchange differences and fair value changes in investment
fund.

Research and development expenses for the year ended
31 December 2017 is decreased by 15% to approximately
RMB6,054,000 (2016: approximately RMB7,090,000). The
decrease in research and development expenses was mainly
due to our effective cost control measures.

Finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2017 is
increased by 107% to approximately RMB2,069,000 (2016:
approximately RMB998,000). The significantly increase in
finance costs were resulted from the increase in borrowings
and certain loans from a director had been revised at higher
interest rate in December 2016.

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 is increased by
125% to approximately RMB15,798,000 (2016: approximately
RMB7,028,000). Increase in revenue and our effective cost
control measures are the main factors leading to the profit
increased.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENBE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
recorded equity-settled share-based payment of approximately
RMB5,508,000 (2016: approximately RMB810,000). The equity-
settled share-based payment for the year ended 31 December
2017 was allocated between the cost of sales, distribution
and selling expenses and administrative expenses amounted to
RMB522,000, RMB580,000 and RMB4,406,000 respectively.

PRC enterprise income tax for the year ended 31 December
2017 is decreased by 82% to approximately RMB345,000
(2016: approximately RMB1,916,000).
income tax expenses was mainly due to no provision for PRC

The decrease in

enterprise income tax has been made as the PRC subsidiaries
had no estimated assessable profits during the year ended
31 December 2017. Hangzhou Singlee Technology Company
Limited (“Singlee Technology”), a subsidiary of the Company,
was established in Hangzhou, PRC, is regarded as a High and
New Technology Enterprise and is therefore entitled to 15%
preferential tax rate for PRC enterprise income tax. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, a deferred tax of RMB1,943,000
has been recognised in respect of unused tax loss of
RMB12,953,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, reversal of impairment
on trade receivables amounted to approximately RMB1,077,000
(2016: approximately RMB440,000). The Group adopted legal
and appropriate measures to collect debts and reduce loss
through, amongst others, phone calls, facsimile, letters, visits,
interviews, as well as legal actions as the final resort. The
Group will also actively improve its receivables collection policy
to enhance cash flows.

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly the Group’s

buildings, leasehold improvements, computer and related
equipment and motor vehicles.

attributable to the Group’s further investments in the Building.

Increase of 78% is mainly

Intangible assets comprise mainly the Group’s capitalised
development costs. Increase of 223% is mainly attributable to
the Group'’s further investments in the intangible assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENBE DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Trade receivables increased in line with business activities
during the fourth quarter of current year. During the year
under review, the trade receivables turnover (the average of
the trade receivables balance at the beginning and the end
of the year divided by the total revenue of the year times 365
days) increased by 26 days to 187 days (2016: 161 days). The
Group's customers are generally granted with credit period
ranging from 120 — 180 days. The Group is comfortable with
the quality of the receivables and will continue to exercise due
care in managing the credit exposure.

Trade payables increased in line with more purchases activities
during the fourth quarter of current year.

Borrowings amounted to approximately RMB64,964,000 as at
31 December 2017 (2016: approximately RMB56,082,000),
representing an increase of 16%, which is mainly attributable
to the increase in secured bank loans and unsecured director’s
loans during the year, partly offset by repayment of unsecured
bank loans during the year. The borrowings would be used for
general corporate purposes including working capital.

We will continue striving our best to increase sales and
strengthen our cost control measures. With the products of our
Group becoming more mature in the market and the effective
cost control, we expect that financial results of the group
would be further improved in the coming year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The Group incurred capital expenditure of RMB11,328,000
(2016: RMB108,000) during the year ended 31 December
2017, mainly for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment and additions in intangible assets developed
internally.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENBE DN

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

GEARING RATIO

The operating expenditures of the Group are funded by

cash flow from operations and borrowings. The Group has

adequate sources of funds to meet its future working capital

requirements.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents denominated in RMB, US dollars and HK
dollars, amounted to approximately RMB35,034,000 (2016:
approximately RMB23,186,000). The Group's current ratio,
based on total current assets over total current liabilities,

as at 31 December 2017 was approximately 3 times (2016:

approximately 3 times).

The Group’s net cash inflow for the year ended 31 December
2017 approximately amounted to RMB11,848,000 (2016:

approximately RMB4,285,000).

nBEE - BBERREEAGL

AEBELEZESKRRRERSE @Zfﬁﬁuﬁz)\
fa@ Z’SEI%HE%@ZﬁiXﬁMﬁE

RZE—+F+_A=+—0 AEBEFEA
RE ZExEBrImBEekRASEEBEBNNA
AR #35,034,0007T (T —NF: HARKE
23,186,0007C) e R - ZE—+EFE+ /A =+—

B AEEZRESLE (REARBEERLER
nBBEEEANE) DAR3E (ZE—XRF:
4931F) -

HE_Z—+tF+-_A=+—BLFE K&
B &R AFELOAEARE11,848,0007T (=
T— N4 ) ARH4,285,0007T) °

At 31 December 2017, the Group had the following RZZE—+tF+-A=+—H AEENKE
outstanding borrowings: BEROT
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
RZE—+tF RZE—RF
t=A=+-B +=ZA=+-H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFTT ARETFT
Fixed-rate borrowings: EEEE :
Unsecured loans from a director EIEHAEEEE 53,964 50,090
Unsecured bank borrowings EEPIRITEE - 4,000
Secured bank borrowings BEPRTEE 11,000 -
64,964 54,090
Variable-rate borrowings: FEMEE
Unsecured bank borrowings EIARRITEE - 1,992
64,964 56,082
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENBE DN

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING RATIO (Cont’d)

The borrowings’ contractual maturity dates are as follows:

RBEE - BBERREEABLR
(&)

EEAHNEIHMAMT

As at As at

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

R-ZZB—+tF RZE—RF

+=—A=+—H +ZA=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T AREFT

Within one year —FUR 13,492 4,444
Between one to two years —F LB EBARE 15,456 4,026
Between two to five years REA FETNBBRF 8,084 17,476
More than five years RELE 27,932 30,136
64,964 56,082

The loans from a director of approximately RMB41,774,000
(2016: RMB43,900,000) are denominated in HK dollars, other
borrowings are denominated in the functional currency of the
respective group entity.

During the year, the Group entered into two revolving loan
facility agreements with a bank with a total credit amounts
of RMB11,000,000 (2016: Nil). The maturity date of the two
revolving loan facilities is on 25 June 2020 and 31 July 2020
respectively. These two revolving loan facilities were fully
utilised as at 31 December 2017.

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the year (2016:
Nil).

The gearing ratio of the Group, based on total liabilities over
total assets, as at 31 December 2017 was approximately 77 %
(2016: approximately 96%). The gearing ratio improvement is
the result of very disciplined and focused management over
working capital. The Group remains confident that gearing
ratio can further improve going forward.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENBE DN

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, there was no change to the share capital of
the Company. As at 31 December 2017, the total number
of issued ordinary shares of the Company was 864,430,000
shares (2016: 864,430,000 shares).

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year, except
for Beijing Singlee Yin Tong Information Technology Co., Ltd,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, was deregistered in
November 2017.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk
management procedures to identify and control various types
of risk within the organisation and the external environment
with active management participation and effective internal
control procedures in the best interest of the Group and its
shareholders.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue segmented on types of goods or services
delivered or provided:

a) Sales of software products

b) Sales of related hardware products

c)  Provision of technical support services

For the year ended 31 December 2017, provision of technical
support services remained the principal source of revenue of

the Group. This services revenue accounted for 79% (2016:
76%) of Group revenue.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iRl#&# (58) R{AERAD 7

PRAZRHE

REN KRR ZBRALETMES - K=
TE—+F+ZA=+—H ARRBETZ
T E A D A $£864,430,0000% (= Z — N 4F
864,430,000/%) °

Bt S K EE B N BB I

BAL R MRBERRMBERAR » AEE2
EffEAR R_T—tF+— AMEEM
O REBPRAFE - WEBBAWESE L EN
EPSLek VNG

AEECBZYRRTRAAREERZT &N
EREZREB2ERAM I NAEZEREF - A
BHERESHARARRIINERRRET 2 ZERE
o MAREERERRZ&EMNE -

an %P7 B2 (1 AR 755 81 0 38

b) HEMRBEFESR

QO RHEERMIERS
RBEZE_ZT—+F+_A=+—HILFE &
M EREDATEEETERARIR -

ARSI A RIRIE AR E S EENT9% (=
— NI 1 76%) °

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF&£3§



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENBE DN

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded
provision of technical support services revenue and sales
of software products revenue increase of 27% and 44%
respectively as compared to the year ended 31 December 2016.
Increase in contracts is the main factor leading to the revenue
increased. Sales of related hardware products revenue decrease
of 37% as compared to the year ended 31 December 2016.

Segment results grew 47% to approximately RMB17,414,000
(2016: approximately RMB11,848,000) mainly due to
operational efficiency.

Details of segmental information are presented for the Group
as disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 562 employees
(2016: 357 employees), including both the PRC and Hong
Kong employees. Remuneration and bonus policy are basically
determined by the performance of the individual employees
and financial results of the Group. Total staff costs for the
year amounted to approximately RMB30,010,000 (2016:
approximately RMB20,699,000).

The Group adopted a share option scheme, details of which
were set out in the “Report of the Directors”.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, certain properties of the Group
located in Hangzhou with an aggregate net carrying amount
of approximately RMB11,086,000 were used to secure the
banking facilities (2016: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENBE DN

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUNDING

Details of the Group’s future plans for material investments or
capital assets and their expected source of funding have been
stated in the Company’s prospectus dated 30 August 2001
under the sections headed “Statement of Business Objectives”
and “Reasons for the New Issue and Use of Proceeds”

respectively.
EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATION

The Group’s revenue generating operations are mainly
transacted in RMB. The Directors consider the impact of foreign
exchange exposure to the Group is minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2016: Nil).

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Our commitment to protect the environment is well reflected
by our continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in our daily business operations. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. The
Group adheres to the principle of Recycling and Reducing. It
implements green office practices such as make use of water
efficiently, double-sided printing and copying, setting up
recycling bins, promoting using recycled paper and reducing
energy consumption by switching off idle lightings and
electrical appliance. The Group is also using office equipment
carrying Energy Label issued by the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department which save energy in the offices.

The Group will review its environmental practices from time
to time and will consider implementing further eco-friendly
measures and practices in the operation of the Group's
businesses to move towards adhering the 3Rs — Reduce,
Recycle and Reuse and enhance environmental sustainability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENBE DN

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there was no
incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations of the places in which the Group operates that
which has significant impact on the business operations of the
Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Company recognises that employees are our valuable
assets. Thus the Group provides competitive remuneration
package to attract and motivate the employees. The Group
regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees
and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with business partners and bank enterprises
to achieve its long-term goals. Accordingly, our senior
management have kept good communication, promptly
exchanged ideas and shared business update with them when
appropriate. During the year, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its business partners

or bank enterprises.

The Group collaborates with responsible suppliers to provide
quality goods with competitive pricing. To this end, the Group
implements policies on supply chain management to ensure
fair suppliers selection procedures. The suppliers should fulfill
the requirements in the supplier screening procedures and the
Group’s experienced employees ensure those goods received
from the suppliers meet the Group's expectation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENBE DN

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and
business prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group's
businesses. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but
could turn out to be material in the future.

Market Risks

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects
ability to meet business objectives arising from the movement
in market prices, like foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Foreign Exchange Rates Risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities were denominated in
Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and United States dollars
("USD"), in view of the potential HKD and USD exchange rate
fluctuation the Group undertake foreign exchange rate risk.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure when the need arises.

Interest Rate Risk
For interest-sensitive products and investments, the Group
analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and

considers managing this risk in a cost-effective manner when
appropriate, through variety of means.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENBE DN

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont’d)
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Group will be unable to
meet its obligations when they fall due because of an inability
to obtain adequate funding or liquidate assets. In managing
liquidity risk, the Group monitors cash flows and maintains
an adequate level of cash and cash equivalent to ensure the
ability to finance the Group’s operations and reduce the effects
of fluctuation in cash flows. The management of the Group
monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance
with all the loan limits or covenants (where applicable) on any
of its borrowing facilities.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems or from external
events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically
rests with every function at divisional and departmental levels.

Key functions in the Group are guided by their standard
operating procedures, limits of authority and reporting
framework. Our management will identify and assess key
operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk
response can be taken.

Investment Risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of occurrence
of losses relative to the expected return on any particular
investment. Key concern of investment framework will be
balancing risk and return across different investments, and
thus risk assessment is a core aspect of the investment decision
process. Proper authorisation system has been set up and
detailed analysis will be made before approving investments.
Regular updates on the progress of the investments of the
Group would be submitted to the Board.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENBE DN

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont'd)
Manpower and Retention Risk

The Group may face the risk of not being able to attract
and retain key personnel and talents with appropriate and
required skills, experience and competence which would meet
the business objectives of the Group. The Group will provide
attractive remuneration package to suitable candidates and
personnel.

Business Risk

Performance of the Group’s core business will be affected
by various factors, including but not limited to economic
conditions, performance of property markets in regions where
our investments locate, the performance of the fund managers
for our invested funds, which would not be mitigated even
with careful and prudent investment strategy and strict
procedure.

Cyber Attack and Security Risk

The Group could be impacted negatively if it sustains cyber-
attacks and other data security breaches that disrupt its
operations or damage its reputation. For example, various
information and sensitive or confidential data relating to its
operations may be subject to attack from hackers and other
malicious software programs that attempt to exploit any
security vulnerability in its system; Sophisticated software and
applications that it produces may contain “bugs” that could
unexpectedly interfere with the operation of the system or may
present unidentified security risk; Misappropriation of sensitive
or confidential data about its customers could lead the Group
to loss of reputation, and exposure to potential litigation and
liability. The Group will continue to enhance IT security and
security information awareness and comply with mandatory
privacy and security standards and protocols imposed by law,
regulation, industry standards, or contractual obligations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRE DM

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont’d)

Intellectual Property Risk

TERBRAHBAEE (&)

HBEERR

The Group could suffer if it does not develop and protect its  fifi#& ANE B T aehiZ MIREB B MHBERE - B
own intellectual property. The Group will take full advantage AEEMEZLBESIIFE - KREBFBIGH
of legal protections by applying for software copyright. For FBE{FZ/EERT DR IERRE - BN DE
licensed Intellectual Property, take appropriate steps to assure IREMMHBERE KEBERGREEREES

its continued validity.

PROSPECTS OF NEW PRODUCTS

it

HEMRNAIR

Please refer to the “Chairman’s Statement” for a discussion on BE#E2HE [ FEREE | P HTH o

this.
FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE T EFENTBEHRE
GROUP
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tF “E-RF “E-hE “E-mF “E-=F
+=A=+-A +ZA=+—-8 +ZA=+-8 +ZA=+t-H t-A=+-H
ILEE LFE LEE EFE LtFE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ANREFT  AREFIL ANREFT  AREFTL
Revenue HEEWA 79,168 64,557 55,819 48,908 33,364
Profit (loss) attributable to RREEER (FE)
shareholders 15,798 7,028 1,294 571 (18,203)
Total assets BE®E 107,905 75,030 56,131 42,004 29,730
Total liabilities afEeE (82,555) (71,772) (60,711) (53,574) (42,471)
Net assets (liabilities) BE (BE) FE 25,350 3,258 (4,580) (11,570) (12,741)
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EERSNEEBZREBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung, Yung Lai, aged 73, the Chairman of our Group
and the director of Strategic Development Committee.
Mr. Hung, who graduated from Shanghai Conservatory of
Music, is also among the founders of the Group. He is in
possession of more than 30 years’ company management
and strategy programming experience and over 20 years’
successful experience in managing high-tech companies;
hence he is familiar with the China business management and
marketing planning. Mr. Hung is now in charge of the Group’s

macrostrategy and the enterprise’s development.

Mr. Cui, Jian, aged 64, a Director of our Group. He was
resigned as the Vice Chairman on 11 August 2017 but remains
as an Executive Director. Mr. Cui is one of the founders of
Hangzhou Singlee Software Co., Ltd. and has been working for
our Group since its founding in 1993. Mr. Cui is responsible for
the investment programming of the Group. Before joining the
Group, he used to work for China Hangzhou Automatization
Research Institute and Hangzhou Huayuan Computer
Application Research Institute as director and president of their

Developing Departments.

Mr. Hung, Ying, aged 48, a Director and Vice Chairman of our
Group. He was appointed as an Executive Director on 30 June
2011 and the Vice Chairman of the Board on 11 August 2017.
He had been the deputy general manager of Hangzhou Singlee
Technology Co., Ltd. and Hangzhou Singlee Software Co., Ltd
of the Group from April 2007 to April 2011. Prior to joining the
Group, he had worked as the marketing director and general
manager in Beijing San Ding Ti Lian Network Technology
Company Limited from May 2001 to December 2005. Mr.
Hung graduated in information, social and management
sciences (majoring in business administration) from University
of Paisley and obtained an EMBA from Peking University. Mr.
Hung has several years of experiences in management, and is
specialised in market planning and sales. Mr. Hung is the son
of Mr. Hung Yung Lai, the chairman and executive director of

the Company.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EEkEREERBCERE

Mr. Lin, Xue Xin, aged 42, has been an Executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of our Group since 1 June 2017.
Mr. Lin has 17 years of experience in the field of computer
technology. He obtained his bachelor degree of Computer
Science and Technology from People ‘s Liberation Army
Polytechnic University in 2009. Mr. Lin joined the group since
2000 and was appointed as the general manager of Hangzhou
Singlee Technology Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company,
in May 2011. Between 2010 and 2012, Mr. Lin was also
employed as a technology expert in UnionPay.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Pao, Ping Wing, Jp, aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the company in
December 2003. In the past years, he had been actively serving
on government policy committees and authorities, including
those relating to town planning, urban renewal, public housing
and environment matters. He has been appointed as a Justice
of the Peace of Hong Kong since 1987. He was an ex-urban
councilor. He obtained a Master of Science Degree in Human
Settlements Planning and Development from the Asian Institute
of Technology in Thailand in 1980. He was elected as one of
the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of Hong Kong in 1982
and one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of the World
in 1983. Mr. Pao is a Hon. Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Housing. He is an independent non-executive director of
Oriental Press Group Limited, Capital Environmental Holdings
Limited, Zhuzhou CRRC Times Electric Co., Ltd., Soundwill
Holdings Limited and Maoye International Holdings Limited, all
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Thomas Tam, aged 70, an independent non-executive
director of the Group, is the fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was the founding
partner of Wongs & Tam, Certified Public Accountants, a public
accounting firm in Hong Kong, set up in 1973 and is now a
consultant of the accounting firm.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EEkEREERBCER

Mr. Lo, King Man, ir,sBs,B8S, aged 80, an independent
non-executive director of the Group. Mr. Lo began his career
in academic administration at the University of Hong Kong and
became deputy director of the former Hong Kong Polytechnic
in 1986. He was also appointed director of the Hong Kong
Academy for performing arts in 1993. Mr. Lo is the Justice of
Peace in Hong Kong, and he has an extensive record of public
service. He has also served on the governing or executive
bodies of numerous educational and cultural organizations. He
was appointed as independent non-executive director of Chow
Sang Sang Holding Int’l Ltd. in September 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. Kehan Xu, aged 45, Chairman Adviser of the Company,
Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited. Dr. Xu is the co-founder &
Managing Director of Dawnrays Biotech Capital (Asia) Limited.
Dr. Xu has been served as the CFO and Executive Director of
Dawnrays Pharmaceutical (Holdings) Limited (2348 HK). Dr. Xu
has been served as the executive vice president and CFO of the
Company, Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (8076 HK).

Kehan received a PhD in Management from Mays Business
School at Texas A&M University, a DBA from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, and a MBA (Investments) from University
of Miami. Dr. Xu publishes on top tier academic journals
(Journal of Management Accounting Research, Journal of
Management and Academy of Management Perspectives). His
research areas include entrepreneurship, behavioral decision-
making, management control tightness, brand portfolio, and
trust in IT-enabled approval systems.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EERSRNEERBZREBE

Mr. Tong, Tsz Kwan, aged 38, is the Chief Financial Officer
and the Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Tong is the
member of the Anxi County, Fujian Province Committee of
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. Mr. Tong is
also the Chairman of the Youth Committee of the Hong Kong
Quanzhou Clans United Association, the Vice General Secretary
of the 5th Committee of Quanzhou Overseas Friendship
Association and director of the An Kwei Clans Association
(H.K.) Limited. He is External Advisor of the Department of
Accountancy and Law of Hong Kong Baptist University. He
is the Audit Committee member and Education Committee
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
Mr. Tong holds a Master of Business Administration Degree in
Finance from University of Southern Queensland. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tong is a fellow member
of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
He joined the Group in June 2007.
He has accumulated over ten years of accounting, auditing

Chartered Secretaries.

and corporate financing experiences. He is now responsible
for accounting, corporate financing and company secretarial

duties.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are the development and
sale of information and network technologies and services to
the financial industry in the PRC. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during
the year.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 29
to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to the
profit from operation by principal activities and geographical
area of operations for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set
out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS
The results for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on

page 92.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of dividend.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Company Ordinance”), including a
fair review of the business, a discussion of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the financial year 2017, an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, disclosures relating
to the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
and relationships with major stakeholders can be found in
the”Chairman’s Statement” and”Management Discussion and
Analysis” sections of this annual report. These discussions form
part of this directors’ report.

Throughout 2017, there was no incidence of non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group’s business.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
7 May 2018 to 11 May 2018, both days inclusive, in order to
determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to
attend the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on
11 May 2018 (the "AGM"). In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the forthcoming AGM, all transfer accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Abacus Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on 4 May
2018.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on
page 21 of the annual report.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out on page 94 and page 180
respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share capital and share options
scheme are set out in notes 24 and 25 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the law of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda, share
premium of the Company is distributable to the shareholders.
At 31 December 2017, the company had no reserve available
for distribution to equity of the company (2016: Nil).
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentage of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2017 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are as follows:

Purchases
51% (2016: 35%)
74% (2016: 70%)

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers combined

Sales
20% (2016: 27 %)
54% (2016: 66%)

— the largest customer
— five largest customers combined

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers stated above.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

So far as is known to any directors or chief executives of
the Company, as at 31 December 2017, shareholders (other
than directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote on all circumstances at general meeting of any
other members of the Group or substantial shareholders as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Report of the Directors

EEHREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER

FERRREMALRARE - HERG

PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company

REER2ERRAR (&)

(m)ALFEREEIIEBLTZERER

Number of shares held

BFEROEAE
Capacity/ Long Short  Percentage of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest position position shareholding
BRERERE 54/ ERER "R RE BEREFESL
Goldcorp Industrial Limited Beneficial owner 287,855,000 - 33.30%
EnEA (note 1)
(Ktet1)
Great Song Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner 287,855,000 - 33.30%
BEniBa A (notes 1 and 2)
(Hiat1k2)
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 33.30%
RRRbIS A4 EEER (notes 2 and 4)
(Kiat2e4)
Beneficial owner 16,025,000 - 1.85%
ERBEREA
Ms. Li Kei Ling Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 33.30%
SHL LT+ B (notes 2 and 3)
(Hizt2R3)
Mdm lu Pun Family interest 368,880,000 - 42.67%
79 G RBER (note 5)
(Hats)
(b) Share options (Z) Bk
Capacity/ Number of Number of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest options held underlying shares
BRIR AW B REEER BFEZERERE HERGHE
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Beneficial owner 65,000,000 65,000,000
RERIIS ST EnEBA

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iRl#&# (58) R{AERAD 7
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

Notes:

1. Goldcorp Industrial Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands equally owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai and Great
Song Enterprises Limited which in turn is wholly owned by Ms. Li Kei Ling.

2. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

3. Ms. Li Kei Ling controls more than one third of the voting power of Great
Song Enterprises Limited which in turn holds more than one third of the
voting power of Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Ms Li Kei Ling is deemed, by
virtue of the SFO, to be interested in the same 287,855,000 shares held by
Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

4. Mr. Hung Yung Lai controls more than one third of the voting power of
Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed, by virtue of the
SFO, to be interested in the same 287,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp
Industrial Limited.

5. These shares are beneficially owned by Goldcorp Industrial Limited as
mentioned in Note 4 of above. Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed to be
interested in the same 287,855,000 shares held by Goldcorp Industrial
Limited. Mdm lu Pun is the wife of Mr. Hung Yung Lai and is deemed to
be interested in these shares in which Mr. Hung Yung Lai is deemed or
taken to be interested for the purpose of the SFO. She is also deemed to
be interested in the 65,000,000 share options and the 16,025,000 shares
beneficially owned by Mr. Hung Yung Lai as mentioned in Note 4 above
for the purpose of SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the directors
or chief executives of the Company were not aware of any
other person (other than directors or chief executives of
the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who
was interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meeting of any other member of the Group or
any other substantial shareholders as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests or short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of
Hong Kong (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which he/
she is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or which were required to be entered into the register
required to be kept by the Company, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to
5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Shares in the Company:

EERERITHAEBRRYD - HERD
REERZERRAR

RZB—+F+_A=+—H ARAIEEK
THRBHERARB R EMEMBEEE (F&
REHLBAEEGIEXVE (BB EFISE571E))
Z RS - BRSO REEE T B ERIRE
FBERBAEROIEXVEHETRESH BAME AR
NAIMBRFZERmEAR (BREESRIEES
RAEIE GO ZEBRXERIENE (EE A
mEOKR) - IREE S R EIRBIE3521578
ERRARRBEFEMNELMKARBEGEM ™
R AI$5.48E5.671KBHE AN T R AZFTH
B MARIT

RATRES

Number of shares held

BEROEE
Capacity/ Long Short  Percentage of
Name of Directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
ExEB 54 ERER ) KR BERLFESL
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Corporate interest 287,855,000 - 33.30%
RRRME LA FEED (note 1)
(Hiat1)
Beneficial owner 16,025,000 - 1.85%
ERERA
Mr. Hung Ying Beneficial owner 8,240,000 - 0.95%
Rt BERERA
Mr. Lin Xue Xin (note 2) Beneficial owner 5,500,000 - 0.64%

MERFT R (Hfat2)

ERmBEEA
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

Shares in associated corporation:

EERERITHAEBRRYD - HERD
REERZERRAR (&)

HECEERD
Number of ordinary

shares held in Goldcorp
Industrial Limited

(note 3)
R Goldcorp Industrial Limited
FrEEREA
(Kt23)
Capacity/ Long Short  Percentage of

Name of Directors Nature of interest position position shareholding
Y 5/ fEmER 3y xe BERTEIH
Mr. Hung Yung Lai Beneficial owner 1 - 50%
RERIAS ST EEEAA
Notes: Mt -

1. The Shares were held by Goldcorp Industrial Limited. Mr. Hung Yung Lai
has 50% interest in Goldcorp Industrial Limited.

2. Mr. Lin Xue Xin was appointed as an Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 1 June 2017.

3. The entire issued capital of Goldcorp Industrial Limited as of 31 December
2017 composed of 2 ordinary shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debenture of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 27 August 2001 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees, and
has been expired on 27 August 2011. Under the Scheme,
the board of Directors of the Company may grant options
to eligible employees, including directors of the Company
and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
The Scheme would be valid and effective for a period of ten
years commencing on the adoption date and have come to its
expiration. All other respects of the provisions of the Scheme
shall remain in full force and holders of all options granted
under the Scheme prior to such expiry shall be entitled to
exercise the outstanding options pursuant to the terms of the
Scheme until expiry of the said options. As a result, a new
share option scheme which was approved on 28 February 2011
(the”New Scheme”), take effect immediately after the expiry of
the Scheme. The principal terms of the New Scheme are same
with the Scheme.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 28
February 2011 (the “SGM"), the Scheme mandate limit was
refreshed so that the Company was authorised to grant share
options under the existing Scheme for subscription of up to a
total of 81,184,000 shares, representing approximately 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
SGM.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 11 May
2016 (the “"AGM"), the scheme mandate limit under the share
option scheme of the Company was refreshed again so that
the Company was authorised to grant additional share options
for subscription for a total of 86,443,000 shares under the
refreshed mandate limit, representing approximately 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
AGM.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of options granted and to be granted to each
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12 months period up to the date of grant must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of grant.

The subscription shall be a price determined by the board of
directors at its absolute discretion and shall not be less than
the higher of the closing price of the share on the date of
grant of the option and the average closing price of the shares
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the option.

Options granted shall be deemed to be accepted upon receipt
of the acceptance of offer letter from the grantee within 28
days from the offer date, together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for the
grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period notified by the board
to each grantee but may not be exercised after the expiry of
10 years from the date of grant.

On 9 October 2007 the Company granted 47,550,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.368 per share to its employees of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of
HK$0.36 immediately before the day on which options were
granted.

On 19 January 2010 the Company granted 20,900,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.20 per share to its directors and
employees of the Group. Shares of the Company were at
closing price of HK$0.20 immediately before the day on which
options were granted.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

On 16 August 2010 the Company granted 8,990,000 options
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the Scheme at
an exercise price of HK$0.84 per share to its employees of
the Group. Shares of the Company were at closing price of
HK$0.84 immediately before the day on which options were
granted.

On 10 January 2011, the Company granted 65,000,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the company under the
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.730 per
share to Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Chairman of the Group. Shares of
the Company were at closing price of HK$0.730 immediately
before the day on which options were granted. The grant of
share options to Mr. Hung Yung Lai and the specific mandate
to allot, issue and deal with the shares of the Company upon
conversion of the foregoing share options were approved by
the SGM held on 28 February 2011.

On 13 January 2011, the Company granted 19,260,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.714 per
share to its employees of the Group. Shares of the Company
were at closing price of HK$0.690 immediately before the day
on which options were granted. The grant of share options
to its employees of the Company and the specific mandate
to allot, issue and deal with the shares of the Company upon
conversion of the foregoing share options were approved by
the SGM held on 28 February 2011.

On 24 June 2013, the Company granted 59,780,000 share
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.1122 per
share to a Director and its employees of the Group. Shares of
the Company were at closing price of HK$0.101 immediately
before the day on which options were granted.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) B ERTE (&)

On 15 May 2015, the Company granted 21,400,000 share ZARAQRIREREFZIN _ZE—AFERA+THE
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the MEZEZEN{E &R F21,400,0000% /%7 2 B A%
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.43 per share  # » Z AL IEZ 1TFEE AT BEE0.437T 7
to a Director and its employees of the Group. Shares of the MBEREENAI—ERXZH  ARRHWKRZEKT
Company were at closing price of HK$0.43 immediately before (B A& E®0.437T -

the day on which options were granted.

On 7 April 2017, the Company granted 86,440,000 share ZARRIZEREFEN _Z—+tFWNALHR
options to subscribe for shares in the Company under the H#E%E - B8 KEM K F786,440,0000% % 5
Share Option Scheme at an exercise price of HK$0.182 per HEAZ# - Z LR E 21T E A SR EK0.182
share to its directors, employees and consultants of the Group. 7o ° FEERERRAI—EARX S H - AWK
Shares of the Company were at closing price of HK$0.182 ZEWHEAGIEE0.182 T °

immediately before the day on which options were granted.

The summary details of options granted are as follows: BRE MEFBOT
Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
Name of directors, share options share options share options share options share options share options
continuous contract outstanding granted during  exercised during  cancelled during lapsed during  outstanding as at
employees and consultants  Exercise period as at 1 January 2017 the year the year the year the year 31 December 2017
R-F-tF RoE-tF
-A-H tZA=+-H
AT BRRH BRERR HWEIHE BREXH AT
EEif BEANERREE RE BREYE BRESE BREYE BREYE BHRESE BREYE
Lin Xue Xin 9 Apri 2008 o 1,500,000 - - - (1,500,000) -

(appointed on 1 June 2017) 8 October 2017
it ZZZ)\ERANEE

(R-B-LERA-REZE) —T-LETANR

Continuous contract employees 9 April 2008 to 14,410,000 - - - (14,410,000) -
(other than directors) 8 October 2017
HERIER (BER) ZZZ)\ERANEE
ZT-tE+ANR
Pao Ping Wing 19 July 2010 to 600,000 . = - = 600,000
18 January 2020
1S ZT-RELATNAR

ZTIEE-RTAR

Thomas Tam 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
yae SE-FELATARE

ZTIRE-RTAR
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

BRESE ()

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
Name of directors, share options share options share options share options share options share options
continuous contract outstanding granted during  exercised during  cancelled during lapsed during  outstanding as at
employees and consultants  Exercise period as at 1 January 2017 the year the year the year the year 31 December 2017
R-E-tF R-E-tF
-B-H tZB=1-A
R BREL BREAR BREHH BrE&H AR
Bt SEAVEERER RE EREHA BREHE EREYA BREHE BREYA EREHA
Lo King Man 19 July 2010 to 600,000 - - - - 600,000
18 January 2020
ERX “E-EELATHAR
“RoEE-ATAA
Hung Ying 19 July 2010 to 2,500,000 - - - - 2,500,000
18 January 2020
%4 ZT-RELATIAR
“RoEE-ATAR
Lin Xue Xin 19 July 2010 to 650,000 - - - - 650,000
(appointed on 1 June 2017) 18 January 2020
He#H “E-EELATHAR
(R=B-tErA-REZE) —Z-F5-ATNA
Continuous contract employees 19 July 2010 to 2,730,000 - - - - 2,730,000
(other than directors) 18 January 2020
REGDHES (BERH) “E-EELATHAR
“RoEE-ATAR
Hung Ying 16 February 2011 to 1,550,000 - - - - 1,550,000
15 August 2020
4 “F-—FZAtARE
“2oEE)\ATEA
Lin Xue Xin 16 February 2011 to 310,000 - - - - 310,000
(appointed on 1 June 2017) 15 August 2020
He#H “E——E-fAtARZ
(R=B—t+5 A-REZHE) —Z-ZE\ATEA
Continuous contract employees 16 February 2011 to 500,000 - - - - 500,000
(other than directors) 15 August 2020
REGDES (BERH) “ET—E-fAtAAZ
== LV
Hung Yung Lai 28 February 2011 to 65,000,000 - - - - 65,000,000
9 January 2021
feRe Z2—%ZACTN\AE
=2 HjH
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

BRESE ()

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
Name of directors, share options share options share options share options share options share options
continuous contract outstanding granted during  exercised during  cancelled during lapsed during  outstanding as at
employees and consultants  Exercise period as at 1 January 2017 the year the year the year the year 31 December 2017
R-E-tF R-E-tF
-B-H tZB=t-A
R BRRH HRERR BREHE BREXH R
Bt GHEAVEERER RE EREHA BREHE EREYA EREHA BREHE BREHA
Lin Xue Xin 28 February 2011 to 690,000 - - - - 690,000
(appointed on 1 June 2017) 12 January 2021
He# “E—f-ACTN\RE
(R=Z—tE~A-REZE) —Z--F-A+2A
Continuous contract employees 28 February 2011 to 11,600,000 - - - - 11,600,000
(other than directors) 12 January 2021
REGDES (BRI “E—f-AZT/\RE
“B--5-RtCA
Hung Ying 24 June 2013 to 40,000 - - - - 40,000
23 June 2023
K Z5-ZERAZTmAZ
ZEIZERAZTEA
Continuous contract employees 24 June 2013 to 7,200,000 - - - (1,000,000) 6,200,000
(other than directors) 23 June 2023
REGDES (BRI ZR-ZERAZTHAZ
ZEIZERAZTEA
Hung Ying 15 May 2015 to 1,900,000 - - - - 1,900,000
14 May 2025
%4 “E-RERATRAE
ZECRERATRA
Lin Xue Xin 15 May 2015 to 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000
(appointed on 1 June 2017) 14 May 2025
He#H ZE-RERATRAE
(RZB-tErA-BEEE) —Z-DERATREA
Continuous contract employees 15 May 2015 to 14,850,000 - - - - 14,850,000
(other than directors) 14 May 2025
REGDES (BRI “I-RERATRAR
ZECRERATRA
Hung Ying 7 April 2017 to - 2,650,000 - - - 2,650,000
6 April 2027
%4 ZZ-tERALER
ZRCHERARA
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

BRESE ()

Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of Number of
Name of directors, share options share options share options share options share options share options
continuous contract outstanding granted during  exercised during  cancelled during lapsed during  outstanding as at
employees and consultants  Exercise period as at 1 January 2017 the year the year the year the year 31 December 2017
R-E-tF RoE-tF
-A-H TZB=t-H
AT BRRi BRohE BRERE BRE XM AT
EEif BEANEERERE RE BRELE BHRELE BRELE ERELE BRELE BREE
Lin Xue Xin 7 April 2017 to - 2,440,000 - - - 2,440,000
(appointed on 1 June 2017) 6 April 2027
He#H “E-LEMALAE
(RZB—tE/A-RERE) _S_tEMARA
Pao Ping Wing 7 April 2017 to - 260,000 - - - 260,000
6 April 2027
1S “E-LEMALAE
ZRCHERARA
Thomas Tam 7 April 2017 to - 260,000 - - - 260,000
6 April 2027
HER “E-LEMALAE
ZRCHERARA
Lo King Man 7 April 2017 to - 260,000 - - - 260,000
6 April 2027
ERX “E-LEMALAE
ZRCHERARA
Continuous contract employees 7 April 2017 to - 34,760,000 - - (500,000) 34,260,000
(other than directors) 6 April 2027
REGDES (BRI “E-LEMALAE
ZRCHERARA
Consultants 7 April 2017 to - 45,810,000 - - - 45,810,000
6 April 2027
B 2 tEMAtLAZ
ZTtEMARA
130,230,000 86,440,000 - - (17,410,000) 199,260,000
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed”Directors’
and chief executives’ interest and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” below and the share option
scheme disclosures in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the company
granted to any director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, or the Company’s subsidiary or
holding company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding
company or a party to any arrangement to enable the directors

to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS

Save for the directors, management shareholders and
substantial shareholders as herein disclosed, the Directors are
not aware of any persons who as at 31 December 2017 were
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more of
the voting power at general meetings of the Company and

who were able, as a practical matter, to direct or influence the
management of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the directors, management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates, as defined in the GEM Listing Rules, has engaged in
any business that competes or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group or has any other
conflict of interests with the Group during year ended 31
December 2017.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on page 46 to
page 84 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the amount of public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Hung Yung Lai (Chairman)
Hung Ying (Vice Chairman)
(appointed as Vice Chairman on 11 August 2017)
Lin Xue Xin (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 1 June 2017)
Cui Jian (Resigned as Vice Chairman on 11 August 2017)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Pao Ping Wing

Thomas Tam

Lo King Man

Pursuant to Clause 87 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Cui Jian and
Mr. Pao Ping Wing shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. In
addition, by virtue of Clause 86 (2) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Lin
Xue Xin is appointed by the Board during the year, shall retire
from office as Directors at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. All of the above retiring Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Pao Ping Wing, Mr. Thomas Tam and
Mr. Lo King Man and as at the date of this report still considers
them to be independent.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not terminable within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 22 to
25 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS" EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and chief executive
of the Company and the five highest paid individuals of the
Group are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company or a controlling shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries, had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions are set out in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements. During year 2017,
renewed tenancy agreement was entered into between
the Company as tenant and related company, Sing Lee
Pharmaceutical Import & Export Co., Limited, as landlord.
The transactions contemplated under the renewed tenancy
agreements constitute continuing connected transactions
(CCTs) of the Group pursuant to GEM Listing Rule 20.29. The
CCTs are exempted from the reporting, announcement, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval requirement
pursuant to GEM Listing Rule 20.74.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate
cover for legal actions brought against the Directors and
directors of the subsidiaries of the Group. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration

of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED ¥ 7&# (5£H) RHABRAF

BHERXS

MERXSHHBHENGREM B WM T27 - = F
—tFR ARF (EABEP) BEERR [
MEBEEROFRABIERET) BRATER
& W& o RIBEGEM LR BI520.291% - &
FHEGBETHERETHRSIBUAEEZ
RERERS - AKEZFHEBEIFIHGEM
ETRANE20.741%  BHRBTHABER - 2
5 FEEHBIBRIEZRE

BEFF ZRERX

MARE  SEEHRNBTEBERERET
ERB IR EEMEBNEAERIRIBE
ZHBRRHEE (RGN (FEEHE
622%) RAREAFNERLT) RARBZE
EPERRE -

ARARRNFACBEREFESEERR  #
HUEZERAKENB AR ZESNEMNER
RARPEERIE - REBESFR X -

REH 1

B [BERRIESTE) ] — &I FT TR 2 AN A FIBERR FE T
BIOh - RANEER - A= B84 5T 3 5 13 1E AR
TR o

EEESYN

R2RER - BEFTRFETMAD LS

ZEBIENEZNROIABEERITRZE
#J o

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF&£3§



Report of the Directors
ESEHEF

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 were audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Yung Lai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
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Corporate Governance Report
TtEERRETE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the value and importance of achieving
high corporate governance standards to enhance corporate
performance, transparency and accountability, earning the
confidence of shareholders and the public. The Board strives
to adhere to the principles of corporate governance and adopt
sound corporate governance practices to meet the legal and
commercial standards by focusing on areas such as internal
control, fair disclosure and accountability to all shareholders.

Saved as disclosed below, the Company complied with
the code provisions in Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) and Corporate Governance Report which set out
in Appendix 15 in the GEM Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 December 2017. The Company periodically reviews
its corporate governance practices to ensure its continuous
compliance.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2017 as set out in GEM Listing Rules
5.48 to 5.67. The Company has made specific enquiry of all
the Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings regarding
the securities transactions by Directors.

Specific employees who are likely to be possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with the same Code of Conduct. No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2017.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company comprises:

Executive Directors Hung Yung Lai (Chairman)

Hung Ying (Vice Chairman)
(appointed as Vice
Chairman on 11 August
2017)

Lin Xue Xin (Chief Executive
Officer) (appointed on 1
June 2017)

Cui Jian (Resigned as Vice
Chairman on 11 August
2017)

Independent Non-executive Pao Ping Wing

Directors Thomas Tam

Lo King Man

The Board formulates overall strategy of the Group, monitors
its financial performance and maintains effective oversight over
the management. The board members are fully committed
to their roles and have acted in good faith to maximise the
shareholders’ value in the long run, and have aligned the
Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing economic and
market conditions. Daily operations and administration are

delegated to the management.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group at each
period end and of the results and cash flows for that period.
In preparing these financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; made
judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for
providing with Board papers and related materials, for ensuring
that all Board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed, and for reporting to the Chairman
on governance matters. All directors have unrestricted access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. The
Company secretary keeps minutes of all meetings which are
available for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Directors. The Company Secretary also plays an
essential role in the relationship between the Company and its
shareholders, including assisting the Board in discharging its

obligations to shareholders pursuant to the Listing Rules.

In order to assist the Directors to carry out their duties, the
Board has set out terms of reference, enabling the Directors to
seek independent professional advice upon reasonable request
under appropriate circumstances and the fees are payable by
the Company.

Independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
period of two years commencing from their employment dates.

In compliance with rule 5.05A, 5.05 (1) and (2) of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive directors representing more than one-third
of the Board and at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company has received from each
independent non-executive director an annual confirmation of
his independence, and the Company considers such directors
to be independent in accordance with each and the various
guidelines set out in rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules

With the various experience of both the executive directors
and the non-executive directors and the nature of the Group’s
business, the Board considered that the directors have a

balance of skills and experience for the business of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

The Company has arranged for Directors’ Liability Insurance to
indemnify its Directors against potential liabilities incurred by
them in discharging their duties. The increase coverage for the
Directors is reviewed on an annual basis. Throughout the year,
no claim had been made against the Directors of the Company.

The Company has established a Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee will evaluate the independence of all
independent non-executive directors each year and make sure
that they comply with the independence requirement of the
Listing Rules. All members of the Board are not related to one
another in all aspects, including finance, family and business.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of 2-3 years. Such term is subject
to his re-appointment by the Company at an AGM upon
retirement.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, any Director
appointed by the Board, (i) to fill a casual vacancy in the Board,
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting
of the Company and shall be subject to re-election at such
meeting and (i) as an addition to the Board shall hold office
until the next AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election. In additions, in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws, one third of the Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election by shareholders at each annual
general meeting of the Company.
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities.
Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
package covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory and
regulatory obligations of a director of a listed company. The

Group also provides briefings and other training to develop
and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Group
continuously updates Directors on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. Circulars or
guidance notes are issued to Directors and senior management
where appropriate, to ensure awareness of best corporate

governance practices.

EEFIIRIE

ETYEBRMHEEREE SEVZTESH
BEEERENBASEEZ R LMARIES
FEFREREERELZETHNER - XREB T
REENEREMFZI - UBERREEEE
HEMNBERE AEERERNESREAH
FTRAREMEREEREZETEEN
N UERESETZEARRERESRLT
TEEAFR2EH EEENBERLT AR
REMEERaREEABBELBESE RIES
AR ERECEERER

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Directors W_ZT—tF+-_A=+—HAFE EE4LH
participated in the following trainings: LAT I
Type of
Trainings
EINE R
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERRIE ST AB
B2
Mr. Hung Ying e Sitad AB
Bz
Mr. Lin Xue Xin (appointed on 1 June 2017)  #E#EE (KT —+F XA —HEZT) A,B
B Z
Mr. Cui Jian ERAEAE AB
Bz
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Pao Ping Wing ISR E AB
Bz
Mr. Thomas Tam HBIBE SE AB
Bz
Mr. Lo King Man ERNXEE AB
B2
A Study corporate governance issue relating to directors’ duties B HREAREERECCREAREHR
B: Reading newspaper, journals and updates relating to the economy, general 2 HIEABEE —RATKEEREIZHRE  TIMRk

business or directors’ duties etc.
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CEBEABRLE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Hung Yung Lai. The
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
segregated and assumed by two separate individuals who have
no relationship with each other. The Chairman of the board
is responsible for the leadership and effective running of the
board, while the Chief Executive Officer is delegated with the
authorities to manage the business of the Group in all aspects
effectively.

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
officer should be clearly established and set out in writing. The
position of the chief executive officer of the Company was
vacant following the resignation of Mr. Chan Kam Fai as chief
executive officer on 23 October 2008 as the company needs
times to identify a suitable candidate to assume the role of the
chief executive officer. On 1 June 2017, Mr. Lin Xue Xin was
appointed as an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, and the said code provision A.2.1 has been
complied with since then.

BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the remuneration committee, the nomination committee and
the audit and risk management committees, for overseeing
All Board
committees have been established with defined written terms

particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.

of reference, which are posted on the GEM's website www.
hkgem.com and the Company’s website at www.singlee.com.
cn. All the Board committees should report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in conducting
meetings of Board committees follow in line with, so far as
practicable, those of the Board meetings.
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BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (Cont’d)

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in the Code which included
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance, training and continuous professional
development of Directors, and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the code provision in the Code and disclosures
in this report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in November
2005. The chairman of the committee is Mr. Pao Ping Wing,
and other members include Mr. Hung Yung Lai, Mr. Thomas
Tam and Mr. Lo King Man. The written terms of reference of
the Remuneration committee which have been revised effective
on 26 March 2012 to comply with the new requirements set
out in the revised code provisions are posted on the GEM
website and the Company’s website.

The remuneration committee has been charged with the
responsibility of making recommendations to the Board on
appropriated policy and structures for all aspects of all Directors
and senior management remuneration. The remuneration
committee considers factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The remuneration committee has considered and reviewed
the remuneration packages and emoluments of Directors and
senior management and consider that are fair and reasonable.

One of directors, Mr. Hung Yung Lai, entitled to receive a fixed
director’s salary of HK$96,000 per annum. During the year,
Mr. Hung Yung Lai voluntarily waived a total of approximately
HK$910,000 (2016: Nil) of his accrued director salaries up to
30 June 2017, of which approximately HK$46,000 is waived
remuneration for year 2017 (2016: Nil). The remuneration
committee welcomed and agreed with his decision.
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CEBEABRLE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established in March 2012. The
chairman of the committee is Mr. Hung Yung Lai and other
members include Mr. Pao Ping Wing, Mr. Thomas Tam and Mr.
Lo King Man. The written terms of reference of the nomination
committee which have been made effective on 26 March 2012
to comply with the new requirements set out in the revised
code provisions are posted on the GEM website and the
Company’s website.

The duties of the nomination committee are mainly to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
identify suitable candidates for appointment as directors;
make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
re-appointment of an succession planning for directors; assess
the independence of independent non-executive directors;
formulate and review the Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing the
policy.

The nomination committee considered the past performance,
qualification, general market conditions and the Company’s
articles of association in selecting and recommending
candidates of directorship. The nomination committee
discussed and reviewed the retirement and re-election of
Directors.

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The audit and risk management committee was established in
August 2001. The chairman of the audit and risk management
committee is Mr. Pao Ping Wing and other members include
Mr. Thomas Tam and Mr.
independent non-executive directors. The written terms of

Lo King Man, all of them are

reference of the audit and risk management committee which
have been revised effective on 21 March 2016 to comply with
the new requirement set out in the revised code provision are
posted on the GEM website and the Company’s website.
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AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(Cont’d)

The primary duties of the audit and risk management
committee are mainly to review the financial information,
oversight of financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems, audit plan and relationship with
external auditors and arrangements to enable employees of
the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters of the Company.

The Company has complied with Rules 5.28 of the GEM Listing
Rules in that at least one of the members of the audit and risk
management committee (which must comprise a minimum
of three members and must be chaired by an Independent
non-executive director) is an independent non-executive
director who possesses appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting related financial management expertise.

Review of financial results

The audit and risk management committee reviewed the
2017 Consolidated Financial Statements in conjunction with
external auditor. Based on this review and discussions with
management, the audit and risk management committee
was satisfied that the Consolidated Financial Statements
were prepared in accordance with applicable accounting
standards and fairly present the Group’s financial position
and results for the year ended 31 December 2017. The audit
and risk management committee therefore recommended
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 be approved by the Board.
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CEBEABRLE

AUDIT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(Cont’d)

Review of risk management and internal control systems

The audit and risk management committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's policies and procedures regarding
internal control systems (including financial, operational, IT, risk
management, information security, legal, compliance and those
controls designed to detect material fraud) by reviewing the
work of the Internal audit department and the Group’s external
auditor, and regular reports from management including those
on risk management, regulatory compliance and legal matters.

The audit and risk management committee reviewed and
concurred with the management’s confirmation that for the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems were effective with reference to
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) Internal Control — Integrated Framework
(2013) principles. The management’s confirmation was
endorsed by the audit and risk management committee and

submitted to the Board.

Review of accounting, financial reporting and internal
audit functions

The audit and risk management committee reviewed and was
satisfied with the adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY BEEERESTILBEK

The Company has had policy of diversity in board appointments AR A —HETZTLEER » RKEAREBEES
as reflected in the current composition of the Board which is @HHEA - ML TEM - EFSEREBLE -
characterised by significant diversity, whether considered in ZHEESNL&LERITE  HEEZTIEEE

terms of nationality, professional background and experience,

as shown in the following illustrations:

A Role of directors A EEABG
Executive Directors HWITES
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUNITES 3

@ Executive Directors

HITES

® Independent
Non-Executive Directors

BIERITES
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Cont’d) BEEEREZ TR (&)
B Nationality B EI%

Hong Kong, China HEEB

China M

@ Hong Kong, China

PEIES
China
H
* Nationality is based on passport, and does not necessarily reflect ethnic origin. * BEERIRGERREM AT RBRKE -
C Professional background C EHEE=R
Business I
Computer and information technology BB AR
Human settlements planning and development ANEETRFREER
Accounting and auditing gt RERT
Education and cultural development HE MR
Computer science and technology ST B2 B AR Al
@ Business
Im
@ Computer and information technology
TR AR

@ Human settlements planning
and development
ANEEEREREER

Accounting and auditing
St &

Education and cultural development
HE KL ERE

~ Computer science and technology

FTEMTRL 2 B R
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Cont’d)
D Age

35-44
45-54
55-64
65-74
75-84

We believe that board diversity enhances decision-making
capability and a diverse board is more effective in dealing with
organisational changes and less likely to suffer from group
thinking. We recognise that board diversity is an essential
element contributing to the sustainable development of the
Company. The objectives of this Policy are, with the support of
our shareholders, to have a Board which:

a) is characterised by a broad range of views arising from
different experiences when discussing business;

b) facilitates the making of informed and critical decisions;
and

c) has sustainable development as its core value,
and thus promotes the interests of all our stakeholders,

particularly the long-term interests of our shareholders, fairly
and effectively.
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CEBEABRLE

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Cont’d)

For the purpose of this Policy, we considers the concept of
diversity incorporates a number of different aspects, such
skills,
knowledge, gender, age, cultural and educational background,

as professional experiences, business perspectives,
ethnicity and length of service. The achievement of these
objectives is measurable on an objective review by shareholders
of the overall composition of the Board, the diversity of
background and experience of individual directors and the
effectiveness of the Board in promoting shareholders’ interests.

In order for shareholders to judge for themselves whether
the Board as constituted is a reflection of diversity, or a
gradual move to increased diversity, on a scale and at a speed
which they support, we shall continue to provide sufficient
information to shareholders about the size, qualifications,
characteristics etc. of each individual Board member and
therefore, the Board as a whole.

The nomination committee has been charged with the
review of the Board Diversity Policy on a periodic basis. The
nomination committee believes that the approach of review of
the Policy may take the form of an analysis of the Board in the
different aspects of diversity as set out above having regard to
the sustainable development of the Company, supplemented
with shareholders’ feedback on the diversity of the Board and
its overall effectiveness in promoting shareholders’ interests.
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TEERBES

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings,

Audit and Risk Management Committee meetings,

Remuneration Committee meetings and Nomination Committee

meetings during the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out

in the following table:

SRS

BEENBE-_TtHF+-A=1+—HLHF
EHFEEEeS ERLEAREEZESS
& FHEEeeRRRERRB M LR

R

Audit and Risk

Management Remuneration ~ Nomination

Board  Committee =~ Committee ~ Committee

Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

BUR

Bzg AREE  HMZERE  REZRE

Directors gz g% zEged EE EE

Number of meetings held EFETRY 5 5 1 1
Number of meetings attended/ EE 9 V4
Number of meetings held SRERTNY

Executive Directors BiTES

Mr. Hung Yung Lai REELE 5/5 - 17 171

Mr. Hung Ying RELE 5/5 - - -

Mr. Lin Xue Xin WML 22 - - -

(appointed on 1 June 2017) (W=ZF—tE A—-BEZMA)

Mr. Cui Jian EREA 5/5 - - -
Independent non-executive directors BUFYTESE

Mr. Pao Ping Wing BRREE 5/5 5/5 11 /1

Mr. Thomas Tam HEAERL 5/5 5/5 n ”n

Mr. Lo King Man ESXEE 4/5 4/5 171 171
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The fees in respect of audit services provided by the
independent auditor to the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted approximately HK$950,000 (2016:
HK$588,000). No other significant fee was incurred for non-
audit services during the year (2016: Nil).

DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the company and its subsidiaries, in
accordance with accounting principle generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation
of the financial statements and the auditor’s responsibilities
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks (including ESG-
related risks) it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems (including those
for ESG-related risks) and reviewing their effectiveness to
safeguard Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.
To this end, management continues to allocate resources for
internal control and risk management systems compatible with
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) Internal Control — Integrated Framework
2013 principles to provide reasonable, though not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.
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CEBREEE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Risk Management

At the Group, risk is defined as a potential action, event
or circumstance that could impact the Company’s ability,
favorably or unfavorably, to meet its strategic goals.

Risk is inherent in the Group’s business and the markets in
which it operates. The aim is to identify risks and then manage
them so that they can be understood, reduced, mitigated,
transferred or avoided. This demands a proactive approach to
risk management and an effective group-wide risk management

framework.
Risk governance structure

The Group's risk governance structure is based on a “Three
Lines of Defence” model, with oversight and directions from

the Board and Audit and Risk Management Committee.

Rl EERABERE (&)

ARER
REE R T & A AR RIER BB B S

EEBNREINZENBENTR  FHX
FHIRIR

AEBOEBNTSEFERR - HAWE R
Exuﬁkﬁlﬁﬂaﬁkﬁtﬂ CEMRI AR R - [&
B & BBIRABELRER - St M

E?“’Hﬁfﬁﬂ’]ﬂ ERNEH WEREE
M A EE R EIERE -

B ER A
AEENRREGRBEEN [ZEH&] KR
A AEFENERLEAREEZECAEE
ERHETR e

The Board &&=

Audit and Risk Management Committee F#Z R AR EEEZE S

The Management 2 E

1st Line of Defense 2nd Line of Defense
E—EmR EERS

Operational Management Risk Management
and internal Controls Functions

EEEERABER Rk EERAE

(R|sk Ownershlp) (Risk Control)
AdEERR) (€2::):0:-9)
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(Cont’d)

Rl EER AR (&)

Risk Management (Cont'd) ERER (&)
Risk governance structure (Cont'd) BB EEREE (E)
Roles Functions Ak 24
The Board Has overall responsibility for the risk 58 %ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ&m%ﬁ%@%?ﬁ
management and internal control systems. BERME-
Oversees the actions of the Management EEERENTARERRAR
and monitors the overall effectiveness of the ERENTEERENER
risk management system and internal control BRI -
function.
Oversees and reviews processes and controls EERELHERLEERR
for strategic and operational risk and monitors BEREGEE  WREA
the effectiveness of the established controls EGREREEZEERE
through the Audit and Risk Management BB EHIE R R -
Committee.
Audit and Risk Supports the Board in monitoring the £ RER hHELEERRBRERR
Management performance of the risk management system ER%ZEE ,\yuﬂﬂifﬁﬁigﬂﬁﬂ M
Committee and key risks and internal control systems. EEIRARH -

Reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function.

Reviews risks raised during annual risk
registration exercise, and other risks and

concerns.

Approves Company's risk tolerance.

EEAEENNELBE
BRI -

EEHEFERARECHET
RN ZIAERRRE A
Rk LR -

ERRAIMD

AR EBK
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TXER

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(Cont’d)

#ﬁﬂ:i

Risk Management (Cont’d)

Rl EERABERE (&)

RBRERE (&)

Risk governance structure (Cont'd) BB EREE (&)
Roles Functions At Biae
Audit and Risk Evaluate and determine the nature and extent EGLER o NEZTCEEMELAEEA

Management
Committee
(Cont'd)

of the risks the Board is ready to endorse for
the Group to take in pursuing the delivery of
the Group's strategic objectives.

Ensure that an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems is
established and maintained by the Group.

Oversee the Management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

Oversee the Management in their risk
mitigation efforts.

ERRMABMAZOR
R ETHERETABR
BREOMEENEE -

BRAEED R K ERH—
EeEMERNERERK
RSB 24T

%gﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁw
BEERGNRT  BiER

EEREERRRSENA
MTfE-

Internal Audit

Independent investigations regarding certain
allegations of fraud and violations of the
Group's Code of Conduct and other company
policies.

Carries out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems.

RETHHFTARERAE
BT RERARE MR AR
RETELRE -

HAKENRREERAR
ERARRERANERLE
HA M BB -
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(Cont’d)

wEE

Risk Management (Cont’d)

Rl EER AR (&)

AREE (&)

Risk governance structure (Cont'd) BB ERREE (E)
Roles Functions At Rigg
The Management Provide leadership and guidance for the EEE o 0 B 2 RS T

balance of risk and return.

Designs, implements and reviews the Group's
risk management and internal control systems.

Communicate and assess the Group's risk
profile and material risks at the Group level.

Track progress of mitigation plans of material
risks and report on detailed examinations of
specific risks as required.

Oversee business units as well as group risk
and the control activities relevant to respective
functions.

Ensure that a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control
systems has been conducted at least annually
and provide such confirmation to the Board
through the Audit and Risk Management
Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Risk Management (Cont’d)
Risk governance structure (Cont’d)

The Management, which co-ordinates enterprise risk
management activities and reviews significant aspects of risk
management for the Group, reports to the Audit and Risk
Management Committee at each regularly scheduled meeting,
including amongst other things, significant risks of the Group
and the appropriate mitigation and/or transfer of identified
risks. The operating units of the Group, as risk owners, identify,
evaluate, mitigate and monitor their own risks, and report such
risk management activities to the Management on a regularly
basis. The Management assesses and presents regular reports
to Audit and Risk Management Committee at each regularly
scheduled meeting.

The Management and employees have evaluated control
environment and conducted risk assessments of businesses and
processes, both at the entity level and the various processes/
transactions levels. We have documented those processes
which are critical to the Group's performance. Within this
exercise, key risks have been identified, along with the controls
required to mitigate those risks, after which, such key risks
and controls are continually reviewed and updated on an
annual basis. High-risk key controls are tested annually by
our management and internal audit. Based on the results of
those tests, process owners are able to represent to Senior
Management that their internal controls are working as
intended or that necessary corrections have been made where
control weaknesses have been found. Internal auditors report
to Audit and Risk Management Committee that controls have
been working properly or have been modified as required.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal
controls undertaken within the Group, the external auditor
also assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of certain
key risk management and internal controls as part of their
statutory audits. Where appropriate, the external auditor’s
recommendations are adopted and enhancements to the risk
management and internal controls will be made.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Risk Management (Cont’d)

The Group’s risk management objectives:

At a strategic level, the Group focuses on the identification
and management of material risks at the Group, business
and functional levels, in order to better equip itself to
pursue the Group’s strategic and business objectives.

At an operational level, the Group aims to identify,
assess, evaluate and mitigate operational hazards and
risks in order to create a safe, healthy, efficient and
environmentally-friendly workplace for its employees
whilst ensuring products and services provided safety and
health, minimising environmental impact, and securing
asset integrity.

The Group’s risk appetite and risk profiling criteria

The

Group’s risk appetite represents the amount of risk the

Group is willing to undertake in pursuit of its strategic and
business objectives. In line with expectations of its stakeholders,
the Group will only take reasonable risks that (a) fit its strategy

and

capability, (b) can be understood and managed, and (c) do

not expose the Group to:

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3

material financial loss;

incidents affecting safety and health of employees;
material breach of regulations;

damage of the Group's reputation and brand name;
business/supply interruption; and

severe environmental incidents.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Risk Management (Cont’d)

The Group’s risk appetite and risk profiling criteria
(Cont’d)

Based on the above, the Group has established its risk
monitoring in the form of a risk assessment matrix to help
rank risks and prioritise risk management efforts at the Group
level. Business units are required to adopt the same risk
matrix structure in order to establish their own risk profiling,
determine consequence and likelihood of identified risks with
reference to their own materiality and circumstances as well as
establishing risk mitigation strategies.

Inherent risk assessment matrix

Rl EERABERE (&)

RRER (&)

7 5% (8] 19 1 e R RE Ay BB R PR P A PE R (4B )

RiE B 2R - N5 8 5 E R B 5T Al AR e LA
TTRBERMFR - LR EEERE SRR EE
THEEITERER  RNERSEBEMERA
1 R A 2 Ben KB o R B R 17 BE oz AN & A JEL B iR
Mo WRBE B AR E R MR B R EEH
&R AIREME - e b FT B AT 4% 3R RS -

BB BRI AEE

Likelihood Rating

BATREMER
1. Highly 2. Not 4. Strong

Impact Rating unlikely expected 3. Sometimes possibility 5. Very likely
BRRER ) TR BE A &E WA AR EZusE
5. Critical Moderate High High Very high Very high
BRIR LR =k = AR &= &b 1 1= L i

4. Major Moderate Moderate High High Very high
BEX LR &R = AR = R 1% = B

3. Moderate Low Moderate Moderate High High
hE i9ENE LR LR = R = A

2. Minor Low Low Low Moderate Moderate
B i9ENE li9EE {i9EN =R P B

1. Insignificant Low Low Low Low Low
1R B 9 {i9ENES KR K2 i
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CEBEABRLE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(Cont’d)
Risk Management (Cont’d)

Risk management process

The following diagram illustrates the key processes used by the
Group to identify, evaluate and manage the Group's significant

risks:

Establlshlng the context
RBEAM

Risk assessment
BT AR

Risk identification
[B B Bl

Risk analysis

BB

RISk evaluation
R %

Risk treatment
n E!w%@

Communication and consultation B &

including strategy formulation, business planning, capital
allocation, investment decisions, internal control and day-
to-day operations management.

assessing their consequences and likelihood, evaluating

risk level,

control and mitigation plans. This is a continuous process
with periodic monitoring and review in place. It is also an
interactive process with stakeholder communication and

consultation.
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identifying risks, .

Is integrated into business and decision-making processes

control gaps and priorities, and developing

AREERAIEE (&)

BERRERE (&
R EEREF

TEHRARNERBEHRR
EARBMNEZRE

AR EEAREE

The management establishes common risk language and risk assessment criteria for the
Group.

Business units identify the risks which may potentially impact the achievement of their
business objectives, and analyze and evaluate the significance of such risk.

Business units assess the adequacy of existing controls, determine and implement
treatment plans where risk mitigants are actionable.

Business units monitor risk mitigating activities.

The management tracks the progress of risk mitigating activities; reports the consolidated
view of risks regularly to audit and risk management committee;and shares risk knowledge
across business units to enhance the risk management standard of the Group.

Group internal audit reports regularly to the Board and/or audit and risk management
committee to provide independent assurance on the effectiveness of risk management
function.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Risk Management (Cont’d)

Risk management process (Cont’d)

e The Group adopts an integrated bottom-up and top-

down risk review process to enable (a) comprehensive

identification and prioritisation of all material risks

throughout the Group, (b) escalation of material risks

at the right managerial level, (c) effective risk dialogue

among the management team, and (d) proper oversight of

risk mitigation efforts.

Bottom-up process:

Business units and group functions are required to
submit their material risks identified through their risk
management process to the management.

The management, through aggregation, filtering
and prioritising processes as well as consultation
process, compile a Group Risk Management Report.
The senior management reviews and scrutinises the
material risks and ensures the appropriate controls
and mitigation measures are in place or in progress.

Following review by the senior management, Group
Risk Management Report is submitted to the audit
and risk management committee with a summary of
the material risks circulated to the Board.

Top-down process:

Emerging risks and/or overarching strategic risks,
which might have a material impact on the Group
over a longer timeframe, are monitored and discussed
on a regular basis by the management.
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CEBEABRLE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Rl EER AR (&)

Risk Management (Cont'd) REBRERE (&)

BEREERF (&)

Risk management process (Cont’d)

Top-down process: (Cont’d) B EMTHRER: (&)
EREMARARANIINEEER -
BEEEFERT M mITERR
BARHKESE b EEBAAEBE
RETRAN R B RRAE
AEOFTERBABEEESEMIE

e The management facilitates ongoing emerging risk o
review and management discussion by compiling
relevant information from both internal and
external sources. Overarching strategic risks are
reviewed and discussed during the annual business

planning process. Emerging risks that are identified E BB EPPTE — DA R EER -
and considered material are further assessed and
monitored by relevant business units or group
functions.
e Internal control is an integral part of enterprise risk o AZPESIEE D EERE P ] kB AY 3T

- AEERREERBRET ABE

EE A DOESME

management. The Group’s enterprise risk management
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framework encompasses internal control, forming a more
robust conceptualization and tool for management. Risk
management is closely linked to the Group’s Integrated
Framework of Internal Control, key controls are subject to
testing in order to assess their effectiveness.

In the annual business planning process, business units are
required to identify all material risks that may impact their
achievement of business objectives. Identified risks are
evaluated based on the same set of risk profiling criteria
as the risk review process. Plans to mitigate the identified
risks are developed for implementation and budget
purposes.
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TREBRESE
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to oversee the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems. This
is achieved through a defined management structure with
specified limits of authority and defined control responsibility
designed to:

e Achieve business objectives and safeguard assets against
unauthorised use or disposition;

e  Ensure maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use

or for publication; and

e  Ensure compliance with the relevant legislation and
regulations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)
Internal control framework

The Company has in place an integrated framework of internal
controls which continues to be consistent with Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO) Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013)
which comprises 17 principles on effective internal controls as
illustrated below:
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BB EEFEHEZE

AN &£ [@ H# 17 BACommittee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO)HYInternal Control - Integrated
Framework (2013) ({RSFESIE — 4R A IER (=
T—=F)) REFANGENMPETEE-F
BANEZR BB LA T 7IB Al B A B EL 1T ) IR

environment: ethical values

The internal e The Board demonstrates independence from
organizational management and exercises oversight of the

environment development and performance of internal

driven by the control

management

operating e The management establishes, with board
philosophy, oversight, structures, reporting lines, and

risk appetite,
integrity, and
ethical values.

appropriate authorities and responsibilities in
the pursuit of objectives

Demonstrates a commitment to attract,
develop, and retain competent individuals in
alignment with objectives

Holds individuals accountable for their internal
control responsibilities in the pursuit of
objectives
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AEERIRE -

Al -
5 Components 17 Principles SKEZR 175 R
Control o Demonstrates a commitment to integrity and PRI o ERUBENEEBNAE

EXEBUNERE Y&
ERNHERZRNEREN

EEFQEET EEER
VARRE ESRHERE
ENRERRR  MEH&
L Lok =Y: )

BRETS - HEMREA
THEGE AR &ENE
ESE))

NEEMtRANBRET
FRACEABEETEAN
Aff

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iF|& 4 (£H) BRAERAF

73



74

Corporate Governance Report
CEEREEE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)

WERESIE ()

Rl EERABERE (&)

Internal control framework (Cont’d) REBEEERESR (&)
5 Components 17 Principles SKEZR 1738 R A
Risk assessment: o Specifies objectives with sufficient clarity to [T o WEBWMEN UBHHH
enable the identification and assessment of EAMEEBRENNER

Risks are identified risks relating to objectives HEER KA
and the likely HERER
impact on the o Identifies risks to the achievement of its TR o BARAMEERENAEM
organization is objectives across the entity and analyses FERZHOER - ]IMI&H’E
assessed. risks as a basis for determining how the risks RETENMNERELRR

should be managed

o Considers the potential for fraud in assessing
risks to the achievement of objectives

o |dentifies and assesses changes that could
significantly impact the system of internal

AR

o HEFEEZBENHEBNRR
B ZEEERNERITA

o ERIMFEHABER RS
AREENEATENNE

control
Control activities: o Selects and develops control activities that THES) o EBRMFELER BE
contribute to the mitigation of risks to the MAMZABREREER
Policies and achievement of objectives to acceptable levels EHEHERE ZKF
procedures are F - BRE X
Implemented o Selects and develops general control activities RITABER | o TEMREREERHT K
to ensure over technology to support the achievement ROREERE MEZRE TREEND
organizational of objectives g %81
objectives and
risk-mitigation o Deploys control activities through policies that o EBEHIFTERBERNIEK
activities are establish what is expected and procedures ]I.Ji&f PR BB 15 2A
effectively that put policies into action TNEWT RERBmET
executed. #HE

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED ¥ 7&# (5£H) RHABRAF

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF&£3§




Corporate Governance Report

AR I
ﬂ:ﬁgﬁi/n

wEE

=

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)

Internal control framework (Cont’d)
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control process
is continually
monitored.
Modifications
are made to
improve internal
control activities
as a result of
the monitoring

process.

and functioning

e Evaluates and communicates internal control
deficiencies in a timely manner to those
parties responsible for taking corrective action,
including senior management and the board
of directors, as appropriate

filiiie - WIE
EmERNE
RIFHELE -
NS EARTE
Eg -

5 Components 17 Principles SKEZR 178 R A
Information and ¢ Obtains or generates and uses relevant, EERBR o WEMEER WHEAAR
Communication: quality information to support the functioning BERNEH  IHABES
of internal control #1088
Relevant PARRA] 7 2 R B
information is o Internally communicates information, BERERE o REEANEEIFANE
communicated including objectives and responsibilities for B SWE TEEMRNER  BREA
in an acceptable internal control, necessary to support the FETE HERMBANEE
format and functioning of internal control
timely fashion
to enable the o Communicates with external parties regarding o HENIRPERNIDEREE
organization matters affecting the functioning of internal METETER
to meet its control
objectives.
Monitoring: o Selects, develops, and performs ongoing and/ EmEE) o EE HHVEBRBER/
or separate evaluations to ascertain whether B BEADE
The internal the components of internal control are present SEEENES

BNERRESFELEFLE
%

o ERFHERBERMRKL
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)
Internal control framework (Cont’d)

Within this comprehensive internal control framework,
management is responsible for setting the appropriate tone
from the top, performing risk assessments, and owning the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal controls.
Other teams such as Finance, Legal, and Human Resources
provide assistance and expertise to management to assist it in
undertaking its responsibilities. The Board and its audit and risk
management committee oversee the actions of management
and monitor the effectiveness of the established controls,
assisted by assurance provided by the external and internal
auditors.

Control standards, checks and balances

Built into the Group’s system are checks and balances. In
addition, as an integral part of our internal control systems,
well defined policies and procedures are properly documented
and communicated. The corporate policies form the basis of all
the Group’s major guidelines and procedures and set forth the
control standards required for the functioning of the Group’s
business entities. The policies address legal, regulatory, and
operational topics, including, for example, intellectual property,
data privacy, employee health and safety, delegation of
authority, information security, and business continuity.

Our internal control systems are based on clear stewardship
responsibilities, authorities and accountability and the
systems cover every activity and transaction of our Group. We
emphasise to our employees that everyone, no matter where
he or she stands in the corporate hierarchy, is an important
part of our internal control systems and we expect them to
contribute to that system.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)
Control standards, checks and balances (Cont’d)

Additionally, the Group has a strong corporate culture based
on good business ethics and accountability. The Code of
Conduct, which applies to all employees, forms the basis
of the Group’s commitment to conducting all business with
uncompromising integrity and ethical behavior. The Code also
helps employees determine when to ask for advice, and how to
obtain it. All employees are required to comply with the Code.
The Group regards any violation of the Code as a serious
matter and is committed to investigating all reported concerns.
Furthermore, in keeping with best practices, the Group has
developed and implemented an Anti-Corruption Policy which
reinforces the Code and provides additional specific guidance
regarding compliance with rules and laws related to corruption.
In addition to setting out guidelines, principles and values,
we recognise that an environment where employees feel free
to bring problems to management is also necessary to make
our internal control systems effective. Our Whistleblowing
Policy makes it clear that all reports to management will be
handled confidentially to the fullest extent possible under the
circumstances.

This comprehensive internal controls framework established by
the Group covers all activities and transactions. Management
performs periodic enterprise wide risk assessments and
continuously monitors and reports progress of action plans to
address these key risks. Management also assesses business
risks when formulating corporate strategies, and tracks and
reports on the implementation of strategic initiatives, business
plans, budgets and financial results regularly to the Board.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)
Control standards, checks and balances (Cont’'d)

To assist the audit and risk management committee in its
oversight and monitoring activities, the Group maintains an
independent internal audit function. Internal audit department,
with its function independent of the Group’s business
operations and complementary to that of the external auditor,
plays an important role in monitoring the Group’s internal
governance. Internal audit provides objective assurance to
the audit and risk management committee that the system of

internal controls is effective and operating as intended.
Key control procedures

(i)  Establishing a structure with defined authority and proper
segregation of duties

— A clear organisational structure with defined lines of
responsibility to facilitate systematic delegation of
authority.

—  Written policies,
defined limits of delegated authority to facilitate
effective segregation of duties and controls.

procedures and guidelines with

(i) Monitoring the strategic plan and performance

—  Business units carry out their respective business
operating plans as laid down in the strategic plan in
accordance with the adopted policies and procedures.

— An annual budget with financial targets provides
the foundation for the allocation of resources in

accordance with prioritised business opportunities.

— Variance analyses help identify deficiencies and
enables timely remedial actions to be taken.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)

Key control procedures (Cont’d)

(iii) Designing an effective accounting and information system

A comprehensive accounting system for providing
financial and operational performance indicators
to facilitate problem identification, and to ensure
complete, relevant and accurate financial information
for timely reporting and disclosure purpose.

An information system for identifying, capturing
and communicating pertinent information to enable
employees to carry out their responsibilities.

Regular reviews for ensuring proper and legitimate
dissemination of financial information.

(iv) Handling and dissemination of inside information

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3

The Group regularly review inside information’s policy
and procedures and make recommendations on a
amendments there to, if necessary, in order to ensure
their effectiveness in making accurate, balanced and
timely disclosure of information in accordance with
disclosure obligations in the changing regulatory
environment.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Internal Controls (Cont’d)

Key control procedures (Cont’d)

(v) Encouraging reporting on serious concern about

malpractice

wel

The Group operates a Whistleblowing Policy which
enables employees to raise concerns about any
malpractice, impropriety or fraud relating to internal
controls and other matters confidentially, without
fear of reprisal or victimization.

Under the Group Whistleblowing Policy, audit and
risk management committee are responsible for
reviewing the effectiveness of the actions taken in
response to disclosures made under the policy by
employees.

Other stakeholders, such as customers and suppliers,
can also raise concerns about any improprieties or
potential improprieties of the Group.

Ensuring controls and reviews of IT application systems as

| as principal operations

Various controls and independent reviews are in place
to uphold the integrity, reliability, availability, security
and stability of the Group’s IT application systems.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

Regarding the disclosure of inside information and internal
control measures, the Company understands its duties under
the Listing Rules and SFO, and adheres to the important
principle of timely publication of the inside information.
The Company abides by the “Guide on disclosure of inside
information” published by the Securities and Futures
Commission, and has developed a complete system of internal
procedures and internal control measures for processing
and publication of information in order to ensure the timely,
accurate and appropriate disclosure of relevant information to
the shareholders and regulatory authorities.

The Group takes all reasonable measures from time to time
to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach
of a disclosure requirement. In this respect, the Management
ensures that appropriate systems and procedures are put in
place and reviewed periodically to enable the Group to comply
with the disclosure requirements. The management also
regularly oversees the proper implementation and functioning
of the mechanisms and ensures that any material deficiencies
are detected and resolved in a timely manner.

Measures include but are not limited to the following:

(a) Establish controls for monitoring business and corporate
developments and events so that any potential inside
information is promptly identified and escalated.

(b) Restrict access to inside information to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis. Ensure
employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve
confidentiality.

(c) Ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements are in place
when the Group enters into significant negotiations.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(Cont’d)

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information (Cont’d)

(d) Develop procedures for responding to market rumours,
leaks and inadvertent disclosures.

(e) Provide regular training to relevant employees to help
them understand the Company’ policies and procedures as
well as their relevant disclosure duties and obligations.

(f) Disseminate inside information via the electronic
publication system operated by the Stock Exchange before
the information is released via other channels, such as the
press, wire services or posting on the Company’s website.

Effectiveness of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2017, the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems have been reviewed twice a year.

During 2017, Group internal audit conducted selective reviews
of the effectiveness of the systems of risk management and
internal controls of the Group over financial, operational and
compliance controls with emphasis on business continuity
management and procurement. Additionally, the heads of
major business and corporate functions were required to
undertake control self-assessments of their key controls. These
results were assessed by the senior management and reported
to the audit and risk management committee, which then
reviewed and reported the same to the Board.

The audit and risk management committee and the Board
were not aware of any areas of concern that would have a
material impact on the Group's financial position or results
of operations and considered the risk management and
internal control systems to be generally effective and adequate
including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted Shareholders Communication Policy
with objective of ensuing that the Shareholders and potential
investors are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company.

The Company has established a number of channels to
communicate with the Shareholders as follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports,
quarterly reports, interim reports and circulars are issued
in printed form and are available on the GEM website
www.hkgem.com and the Company’'s website at www.
singlee.com.cn;

(i) periodic announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange and published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iii) corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website;

(iv) annual and special general meetings provide a forum for
the shareholders to make comments and exchange views
with the Directors and senior management; and

(v) the Hong Kong share registrar of the Company serves
the Shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend
payment and related matters.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there is no

significant change in the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholder’s interest
and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration voting. All
resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meeting will be voted
by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and the poll voting
results will be posted on the GEM website and the Company’s
website after the relevant shareholders’ meeting.

Extraordinary general meeting may be convened by the Board
on requisition of shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company or by such shareholders
who made the requisition (the “Requisitionists”) (as the
case may be) pursuant to Article 58 of the Bye-laws. Such
requisition must state the object of business to be transacted
at the meeting and must be signed by the Requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the Company or
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
Shareholders should follow the requirements and procedures as
set out in such Article for convening an extraordinary general
meeting. Shareholders may put forward proposals at general
meeting of the Company by sending the same to the Company
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders may
send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% A

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP)
LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “"Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 92 to 180, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (”“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (“ISAs").
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s

Our responsibilities under

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code"”),
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe

and we have fulfilled our other

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M A% SR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BRESNSE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FBEEBAFEIRERMNZEHNE  RAY
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the AHGAPBERENEIRAEEENEHR - %
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These S EBERAERMBAEEGATHRELDA
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the ERFBFETEEN - M TSHZSEHER
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming FEB&ER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter
BRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANENIEEFAEETSE

Valuation of trade receivables

R E 5 R4 1E

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a
key audit matter due to its financial significance to the
consolidated financial statements and significant degree
of estimation by the management in determining the
allowance for doubtful debts based on the credit history
of its customers and the current market conditions.
BAMERETRKESERAERBRESFE @R
HEUGREMBEBRERNMBEELUAREEEERBERP
BE BRI TIREE RERER IEGFTOEER
g o

As disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is RMB45,771,000, net of
allowance for doubtful debts of RMB581,000.
GRS M BMRMF17TAHE R —+tF+= A
=t+—BOEWE S EFEEERSARK45,771,0007T
E kR KRB B A RE581,0007T °

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED ¥ 7&# (5£H) RHABRAF

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of trade
receivables included:

RPBERREYNE SRR GENETF BT

e Obtaining an understanding of the rationale
applied by the management in determining the
allowance for doubtful debts and assessing its
reasonableness with reference to the ageing
analysis, information of subsequent settlements
and historical settlement pattern of the debtors;
DERBRON - BBENOERREB AR L
BERAERENTHEREETRREE LM
HE IR MR KIR

e Testing the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables, on a sample basis, to the source
documents; and
BRI - HERKE 5 RAARR D ITET
BIE &

e Testing the subsequent settlements of the trade
receivables, on a sample basis, to the source
documents.

MR - HEKE SRR EEEMNET
A e
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% A

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by
the 1ASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3

H &R

ERFERAHEMENBE - HBEHERE
FHRAMBENER  BEFEEREEMBHRR R
AR E P BN S -

BRHESEAMBHRERNBERL T RERBE
£ AT T HZFEME M EREAT AR

IREBHE® ©

REMEGEMBERENES  RMNEED
MBI EHMER - LHBIRR - EEEME R &
eV BmEANBMERITBEFRMANED
BAREFREEAEBIEUFTEERNER
BRit - ERBRMERATHIE HRMRBAEE
ERGFAEEREREL  RMIFEHREZSE
E o R W B FIBAERS o

EENAEEMGRE M BMRAAEN
B

BERRESAARRBEEREH ENZEEH
R BIBR I 5 5 R R BB A Rl Ik 1JE’JT)§ZE‘§

p

HRERBEEMIATFHEEYBREK  XHE
ERBREGAMBRENRBR AT EHNK

#F Bk 55 R T 28 B ey B K BE RR PR L T 75 A9 A BB
HET -

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iF|& 4 (£H) BRAERAF

87



88

Independent Auditor’s Report
B M A% SR

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont’d)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iRl#&# (58) R{AERAD 7
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Independent Auditor’s Report
M % B R R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M A% SR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iRl#&# (58) R{AERAD 7
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% A

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

From the matter communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine this matter that was of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and is therefore the key audit
matter. We describe this matter in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Yuen Wing Hang.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

AeBEEhEMEE RS X

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

2017 2016
—E—tF —TRF
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
M et AR¥ETFT AREFr
Revenue HEWA 5 79,168 64,557
Cost of sales HE R AR (41,218) (34,109)
Gross profit EX 37,950 30,448
Other income EH A 2,535 1,625
Other gains and losses Hilas R EsiE 6 1,632 (2,303)
Distribution and selling expenses 7 #5 M $5&E & (10,768) (9,162)
Administrative expenses EEER (16,157) (11,106)
Reversal of impairment loss FEWE 5 R R [E R
recognised on trade receivables 1,077 440
Finance costs mEBH 7 (2,069) (998)
Profit before tax BRBE AR 14,200 8,944
Income tax credit (expense) Fris®ike (BA) 8 1,598 (1,916)
Profit and total comprehensive ZAREEXRFRZEBALLE
income for the year 9 15,798 7,028
Earnings per share BRWKE
— basic (RMB cents) —HRKN (ANR#5) 12 1.83 0.81
— diluted (RMB cents) — g (ANR%5) 12 1.82 0.81

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iRl#&# (58) R{AERAD 7
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A BB AR R &R

At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+F+_-HA=4+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F AN
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB'000
M et AR¥ETT AREFIT
Non-current Assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB REE 13 13,366 7,525
Intangible assets EmEEAE 14 5,821 1,802
Deferred tax asset EIERRIBE E 15 1,943 -
21,130 9,327
Current Assets REBEE
Inventories T8 16 446 427
Trade and other receivables U E 5 K H A AR X 17 50,990 41,383
Held for trading investments BIEEERE 18 305 707
Bank balances and cash wITEB LIRS 19 35,034 23,186
86,775 65,703
Current Liabilities HREBEE
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 REMARR 20 17,255 12,980
Amounts due to directors B EERIE 21 325 1,037
Amount due to N BB A RIFIE
immediate holding company 22 1 12
Tax payable FEITEIE - 1,661
Borrowings =g 23 13,492 4,444
31,083 20,134
Net Current Assets RBEEFHE 55,692 45,569
Total assets less current liabilities 2 &EERBAEBEE 76,822 54,896
Non-current Liability kRBAE
Borrowings g 23 51,472 51,638
Net Assets EEEE 25,350 3,258
Capital and reserves EXRRE
Share capital [N 24 8,551 8,551
Reserves EE 16,799 (5,293)
Total Equity ERBEE 25,350 3,258

The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 180 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

21 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3

HUNG YUNG LAI

DIRECTOR
REELE
EF

FREIBOEMFENFEEUBHRERLIEESRTERN
TE-N\FZA- T RAMERRETE X
HINIATREREE

CUI JIAN
DIRECTOR
323
EF

<
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REER®E R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

Share
Share Share Statutory ~ Shareholder's  Translation options  Accumulated
capital premium reserves  contribution reserve reserve losses Total
B& RHEE EERE RRER EjifdE BRERE 2iER fif
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEEFL  AREFT  ARETR ANEEFT  AEEFT  AEEFT  ARETT  ARETx
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢)
(Wia) (Hin) (Hitc)
At 1 January 2016 RZE—75-A-H 8,551 158,608 3,613 - 5217 31,953 (212,522) (4,580)
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AFERFR2ERA
income for the year &% - - - - - - 7,028 7,028
Lapsed of share options REERM RRE - - - - - (1,291) 1,291 -
Recognition of equity-settled AREEENRA A
share-based payments ERNNFH - - - - - 810 - 810
At 31 December 2016 RIZ—E
tZA=t+-A 8,551 158,608 3,613 - 5217 31472 (204,203) 3,258
Profit and total comprehensive  AFEFEEFR2ERA
income for the year &5 - - - - - - 15,798 15,798
Shareholder's contribution hE# - - - 786 - - - 786
Lapsed/expired of share options ~ AFEXM/ZIE
Bk - - - - - (3,176) 3,176 -
Recognition of equity-settled TREEENEDA
share-based payments ERHAR - - - - - 5,508 - 5,508
At 31 December 2017 RIE-—tF
+ZF=1-H 8,551 158,608 3,613 786 5217 33,804 (185,229) 25,350

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED ¥ 7&# (5£H) RHABRAF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REER®E R
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

Notes:

(a)

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Companies Act”), share
premium is distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
share premium and other reserves if (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital account.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain two statutory reserves, being an
enterprise expansion fund and a statutory surplus reserve fund which are
non-distributable. Appropriations to such reserves are made out of net
profit after taxation reported in the statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis are decided by
their respective boards of directors annually. The statutory surplus reserve
fund can be used to make up their prior year losses, if any, and can be
applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation issue. The
enterprise expansion fund can be used for expanding the capital base of
the PRC subsidiaries by means of capitalisation issue.

On 30 September 2017, Mr. Hung Yung Lai, being the Chairman,
executive director and controlling shareholder of the Company, waived the
balance due to him of approximately RMB786,000. The amount has been
capitalised as shareholder’s contribution.

Bt

(a)

REARE-NN—FRRE ((REED - ROEE
AR TR ER R ATER ¢ O 5K
® ARBTHRMBESEE  HMEEEZATZ
RESIREREREDETRAR L - BIALQTF
TEERSIR M IR B Sk AR 56 8 R A b fE 5
i

RBPEARKNE ([HE]) IHRELCEZ BRI
BICERFTRE - ARA) 2P EMERRERLMET
ANIREERE  DERBRESEAERBREE -
DEEZERE BRDRETEKBRREEBHREK
ZBRBMBRAANFEN  MeBm ko EELRAEXAN
BEXGEFRT AERKREEURAERE L —FEZ
R (A)  NAEBEAMEBETERRER - ¥
BRESEEEMBITRATENBRARZEALE

o

RIZ—tFNA=TH  REMEEE  ARFEE -
MITEFFRERBRR  MReRNRIEROR/ARE
786,0007C * ZFRLHESAERBRIRTUEARE -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEEHESERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFT ARETFT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REREY
Profit before tax FR 75 A A 14,200 8,944
Adjustments for: PFEE
Finance costs BEEA 2,069 998
Interest income FEYA (21) (12)
Exchange (gain) loss FEN (Uzs) Bk (3,163) 2,158
Depreciation of property, ME - BERRENE
plant and equipment 789 871
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EEH 513 366
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - KER&EEE
plant and equipment 31 4
Impairment loss recognised on H A YR OB E B 18
other receivables 10 -
Recovery of trade receivables FENE 5 R RURE 2
previously impaired (1,077) (440)
Equity-settled share-based & hE 45 AR D B E TR 3R
payment expenses 2 5,508 810
Loss arising on change in fair value on RIEEBEREZAREE
financial assets classified as 518
held for trading 362 22
Inventories written down FERE 294 -
Waiver of other payables e E Ath FE S /IR (26) -
Operating cash flows before EEEASHAIZKEESR
movements in working capital 19,489 13,721
Increase in trade and FENE 5 Fe H b BRFRIE hN
other receivables (8,540) (15,370)
Increase in trade and other payables FERTE 5 R A BRI N 4,301 2,690
(Increase) decrease in inventories F& (Em) (313) 80
Cash from operations KEFMBRE 14,937 1,121
Income tax paid BFERH (2,006) (1,163)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REFEBHAE (FA)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ZREFE 12,931 (42)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEHESERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFT ARMFT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchase of property, EEWE  BELE&EB
plant and equipment (6,796) (108)
Increase in intangible assets |\ A EE N (4,532) -
Interest received BB 21 12
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME - WENEE
plant and equipment FriS 318 135 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REFZHMAZREFH
ACTIVITIES (11,172) (96)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Proceeds from loans from a director EZEEMBRIE 8,084 4,769
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEEMBRIA 15,000 4,000
Advance from directors EERMECEK 325 341
Repayment of loans from a director BESEEE (1,000) -
Repayment of bank borrowings BEERITEE (9,992) (3,444)
Repayment of advance from directors BREEE 2N (259) (245)
Interest paid BRFLE (2,069) (998)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING BMEFHREREFR
ACTIVITIES 10,089 4,423
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBEEEYWEMFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 11,848 4,285
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FAzHERREEEY
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 23,186 18,901
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND H&XzHB&£Kk
OF THE YEAR, RESEY
represented by bank balances and cash BERITHRER RS 35,034 23,186
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GENERAL

Sing Lee Software (Group) Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” in the annual report. Its immediate and
ultimate holding company is Goldcorp Industrial Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its
ultimate controlling party is Mr. Hung Yung Lai, who
is also the chairman and an executive director of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are development and sales of
software products, sales of related hardware products
and provision of technical support services. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 29.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to IFRSs
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB") for the first time in the current year.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to IFRS 12 Included in Annual
Improvements to IFRS

Standards 2014-2016 Cycle
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year (Cont’d)

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first
time in the current year. The amendments require an
entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. In addition, the amendments also require
disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash flows
from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will
be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to
be disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows;
(i) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of
subsidiaries or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes
in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and
(v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 31. Consistent with
the transition provisions of the amendments, the Group
has not disclosed comparative information for the prior
year. Apart from the additional disclosure in note 31, the
application of these amendments has had no impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZ_-ZF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments'

IFRS 16 Leases?

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments?

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts'

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property’

Amendments to IFRS 10
and |AS 28

Amendments to IAS 28
Amendments to IAS 40

Amendments to IAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements

to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle?

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendments, Curtailment

or Settlement?
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

(Cont’d)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements
for financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

Key requirements of IFRS 9 which are relevant to the
Group are:

e all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income. All other
financial assets are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Re B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. FERAFE RAEET BIRR B 75 3R 45 2
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING B ([EPREIFEEREZER ) (82)

STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective © FE A5 5 AR A Rz H 5T IR AR 5T Bl B B

(Cont'd) BHRERER (&)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont'd) BB R IR EERFIN 2T A ()

e in relation to the impairment of financial assets, e HNTREEME ERMBRELE
IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as AR EZR —BHEBMERBAR
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under 1AS o T IEAR R BB & 5t 4 A 8395
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity R-BEEEENERBRERER - ZE
to account for expected credit losses and changes in MERBARARTE —EERERE
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to TEHERBARZSERERELRZ
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. BEESERSAHAR  URERA
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit MR EERR 2 #8) - RO:E
event to have occurred before credit losses are SR TEREYZAIEENER
recognised. EHmRERELX -

The directors of the Company anticipates that the NAEIESTEEG R E A BRI s %

application of IFRS 9 in the future has no material impact ISR AEBGEVBERRTER LS

on the amounts reported and disclosures made in the BERIEHZFETBERTE -

Group's consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS 15
will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts
and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Cont’d)

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
control of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.
Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

In 2016, the IASB issued clarifications to IFRS 15 are
issued in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as well
as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of IFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures, however, the directors of the Company do
not anticipate that the application of IFRS 15 will have a
material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised in the respective reporting periods.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will
supersede IAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

IFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and
finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases
by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low
value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of
lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, operating lease payments are currently
presented as operating cash flows. Under the application
of IFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will
be allocated into a principal and an interest portion which
will be presented as financing cash flows by the group.

In contrast to lessee accounting, IFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
IAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (Cont’d)

New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Cont’d)

IFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
RMB1,804,000 (2016: RMB1,075,000) as disclosed in
note 26. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of IFRS 16, The Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all
these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of RMB260,000 as rights under
leases to which IAS 17 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under IFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits
may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments
are considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments
to refundable rental deposits paid would be included in
the carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits received would be considered
as advance lease payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may
result in changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above.

Except as described above, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of the other amendments
to IFRSs and interpretation will not have material impact
on the Group's financial performance and positions and/or
the disclosures to the consolidated financial statements of
the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are within the scope of IAS 17 Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2
Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. SETHBER (88)
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Statement of Compliance (Cont’d)

EHREA (F)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value o - BB BHREME - AR EFERE

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based AREFENHABBASREEREERAR

on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value B 2B ABBYAERRBNEZN S

measurements are observable and the significance of the BE— - FRRE=L  FFBOT

inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active e F—MWABBRISEENITERHA
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the LEEHEREERBERNERM S

entity can access at the measurement date;

e level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices

included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an

investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control

3.

TESHEE (8)

fisl = B R AF R R £ XA P = TR 6 H 3=
Hp—HZHENE  AAKREEERZ
BINAZERIRE T -

listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company EARRMBHBRARZEHE  Fi8%
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the WEBARGAEARE  BXAaIREMBA
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, Bl ZEHIE - BRI ZM B AREGE

income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains control until the
date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's
activities, as described below.
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Re B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. EEEFEBE (&)
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Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Revenue from sales of hardware and software products
is recognised when the goods are delivered and title has
passed upon customers’ acceptance.

Revenue from a contract to provide technical support is
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract. Servicing fees are recognised by reference to the
proportion of the total cost of providing the servicing for
the product sold.

Service income for provision of other technical support is
recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property is accounted as
an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element at
initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. SETHBER (88)
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Leasehold land and building (Cont’d)

HETHREF (&)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments WEBNREITESE  MINEEEEA
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that FROWHE TR ERE MBI R RF T
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as &ITEMHEENK] - AREBANRERE

“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the leasehold land and building
elements, the entire property is generally classified as if

the leasehold land is under finance lease.
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Foreign currencies Shitg

In preparing the financial statements of each individual PRESENREERE T B@MKRE - U
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the BRI EE N G (INE) 1T
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are RG5NEFFHNEEE (ABEBE2K

recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
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Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

—  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

—  the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Intangible assets (Cont’d)

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any).
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.
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Financial instruments eRITA

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in EEEERBRNASMIT A ZENIEN ZE]
the consolidated statement of financial position when a VAR cRHEELSBREBGEREETE
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions RS TR AR o

of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
two categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and receivables.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL represent financial assets held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

e on initial recognition, it is a part of an identified

portfolio of financial instruments that the Group

manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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Financial instruments (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
credit period of 120 — 180 days, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. EEEFEBE (&)
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Financial instruments (Cont’d) SWMITHE (&
Financial assets (Cont’d) THEE (Z)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d) eEAERE (&)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

BREKEZERR 2 RRESBRERE B
AN TR EREE < REEERZR
BEERE - BEREZEEEZHNE
P RERR o i FE IR TR AR A SRR IR ]
I B f AR B MEE - RIS EMEE 2
FIBAFTARZEA

RAER AR - R (B & 18 & 8RR A 1 %R
DA EEWR R EER R ERRREL
ZENBR SRR ZHMEBERES
BRED  EZEEREERERSZER
EENMSHBBEL EERME BN TE
BB o

EMEERKRATA

SEERRTCERBERRATANLR
BAEARBEZEERSRAEENMEATA
ZEEDIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)

3.

N

FESEHE (8)
ERIA (&)

EHMEERKRATIR (&)

Equity instruments BRAETA
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a BRATEDFRAEERNIRMEARRE

residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue cost.

ZEETBRBZNGER 2ERNGLH -
RN R ET 2 BRAR T AR RIBUE B T A
FCEE - FMBRE R BITAOR

Financial liabilities THEE
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, THEGE(BRERENBEZREMIER - &
amounts due to directors, amount due to immediate NEEHRIE  BNEEZERARZIERE

holding company and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. SETHBER (88)
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Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options

ERITA (&)

AUTER

HMETHEEZRSREZANENE
W REREECREREARECEHE
ZESTMEERGRZEBASNRAR KD
- eREERIRK TR -

ERBKIL RS MARR  RAEZE
T 5 B R BB 1 2 P 2 BT A
R -

HEBA KGR EEMERR - BUBL
& SRAERIRAR LR - WK IR
AZeBBBEZRAEED N MEMNKRE
ZEBER BT HER

URGORERNTRRZS

REGEURGRBEBRNAX S

R H B HHEE R AR A AR ) R E
BAROAABECRERBIMARTS
HRRBIRT) ERBRRUEREINE
FISZ - WHARA (BRI E) PR AR e
KB o

reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its RIERR - REERET(EPTH HRE
estimates of the number of options that are expected MSHEBKREET AR EBERESE
to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market ZiEEr e R B ERBII A2 E (1
vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the ) RERBER UHBREREEDSE

estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Cont’d)

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of share options granted would be
expensed fully at one time, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an asset individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash- generating units, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 3. EEEFEBE (&)

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(Cont’d)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZ_-ZF

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Allowance for doubtful debts

The Group’s management assesses the recoverability and
determines impairment of trade receivables in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in note 3. Such
estimation is based on the credit history of its customers
and the current market conditions. Management
reviews the debtor settlement status periodically and
reassesses the sufficiency of allowance for doubtful debts
accordingly. If the customer’s financial position were to
deteriorate, actual impairment loss or write off would
be higher than estimated. As at 31 December 2017, the
carrying amount of trade receivables is RMB45,771,000,
net of allowance for doubtful debts of RMB581,000
(2016: carrying amount of RMB35,643,000, net of
allowance of doubtful debts of RMB1,658,000).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Company’s executive
directors, being the chief operating decision maker
("CODM"), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of

goods or services delivered or provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating
segments under IFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:

1. Sales of software products
2. Sales of related hardware products
3. Provision of technical support services

No operating segments have been aggregated in arising at
the reportable segments of the group.
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Re B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. HEWARDHER (&)
(Cont’d)
Segment revenues and results DMEHEWMARES
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and REBREERFAIZHmD HE D HEWA
results by operating and reportable segment: REZ AT -

Sales of Provision of

Sales of related technical

software hardware support
products products services Total

R

HEBRM HEMR Bifi &
Em BHEM PR % &t

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTR ARETR ARETR

2017 —E—tF
External sales and total revenue ¥t9MEE RAZSEE WA

— segment revenue — DEHEMA 12,525 4,174 62,469 79,168
SEGMENT RESULTS DEEE 3,103 1,154 13,157 17,414
Unallocated other income KA REAWA 2,535
Unallocated other gains and KOEE MU e

losses 1,632
Unallocated corporate expenses AR ECEMT (5,312)
Finance costs MEER (2,069)
Profit before tax B R 14,200
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZ_-ZF

5.

—tFEF_H=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. HHEWARDIER (&)
(Cont’d)
Segment revenues and results (Cont’d) DEHEWMARES (&)
Sales of  Provision of
Sales of related technical
software hardware support
products products services Total
hefit
HEBM fich=¥izl BT &
Em EHEMm AR B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
2016 ZE-RF
External sales and total revenue ¥i9Ng4E R 4B S E UL A
- segment revenue — DEHEERA 8,717 6,646 49,194 64,557
SEGMENT RESULTS DEDEE 1,867 870 9,111 11,848
Unallocated other income AOEE AU A 1,625
Unallocated other gains RAoBEM U R ER
and losses (2,303)
Unallocated corporate expenses ﬁiﬁ@ﬂm%ﬁﬂiﬁ (1,228)
Finance costs mEB (998)
Profit before tax BR 7% A1 i A 8,944
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the &9 B2 & FTBUR B FE3AT i 2 AN R

same as the Group’s accounting policies as described in
note 3. Segment results represents the profit from each
segment without allocation of finance costs, unallocated
corporate expenses, other income and other gains and
losses. This is the measure reported to the CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment. No segment information on assets and
liabilities is presented as such information is not regularly
reported to the CODM for the purpose of resource

allocation and performance assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Re B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. SHEWARDIER (&)
(Cont’d)
Other segment information Hit o BER

Sales of Provision of

Sales of related technical

software hardware support
products products services Total

R

HEBRM HEMR Bifix &
Em BHEM PR % &t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIE ARETT ARETT ARETT

2017 ZE—tF
Amounts included in the BERTESBEE

measure of segment ik ¢

results:
Depreciation of property, mE - BERERETE

plant and equipment 125 42 622 789
Amortisation of B EEEN

intangible assets 81 27 405 513
Recovery of trade receivables  JEUWE 5 B8R ZURE R

previously impaired (170) (57) (850) (1,077)
Share-based payment expenses AR 7 /A& Z 0 (< 05 52

(excluding directors’, (TREERELE

employees’ and consultants’ HYWES  EER

expenses recognised in BRHEZ)

corporate expenses) 322 107 1,605 2,034
2016 ZE-XRF
Amounts included in the BENTTESDEE

measure of segment M

results:
Depreciation of property, mE - BERERETE

plant and equipment 117 90 664 871
Amortisation of B EEEN

intangible assets 49 37 280 366
Recovery of trade receivables  JEUWE 5 8EZURE R[]

previously impaired (59) (45) (336) (440)
Share-based payment expenses AR 7 & E 7 (< 205 32

(excluding directors) (T"EEESE) 98 76 556 730
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers is all
generated from customers located in the PRC.

All non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC
by location of assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers from sales of software products,
related hardware products and provision of technical
support services of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

HEWARDBER (&)

HEER

AEEKBEINKEF ZHERAYHKE
RENEP -

AEEMAFRRDEEREEMELE D
BRFBEA -

IREFENR
AEBERBEMNEP ZHESFER - 1

RATEFE G MIRE BN ERE ZWAT
BARIBAEEE10%WT ¢

2017 2016

—E—tHF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTFT ARETF T

Customer A =FEH 15,467 17,427
Customer B z2E/7, 12,885 13,694
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

6. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

6. HittWmEKkEE

2017 2016
—E—tE —E RN
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFT
Loss arising on change in fair value FEEEREZANE
on financial assets classified EE)EE
as held for trading (362) (22)
Exchange gain (loss) b 5 e (1B2K) 2,304 (2,277)
Inventories written down GFERE (294) -
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - KE K
plant and equipment HiEEE (31) (4)
Others HA 15 -
1,632 (2,303)
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MMEER
2017 2016
—E— —T RN
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFr
Interest on bank borrowings RITIEEZF A 344 299
Interest on loans from a director BEEEEZNE 1,725 699
2,069 998
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INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

8. Frig® (%) EH

2017 2016
—E—+F AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT AREFT
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT") A TS
([ZEFREHL)

— Current year —REE - 1,661
— Under provision in prior years —BAFEEEETR 345 255
345 1,916

Deferred tax (Note 15) BIETRIE (K7aE15)
— Current year —REE (1,943) -
(1,598) 1,916

Hangzhou Singlee Technology Company Limited (“Singlee
Technology”), a subsidiary of the Company, was
established in Hangzhou, the PRC, with statutory tax rate
of 25%. Singlee Technology is regarded as a High and
New Technology Enterprise defined by Zhejiang Finance
Bureau, Administrator of Local Taxation of Zhejiang
Municipality and Zhejiang Municipal office of the State
Administration of Taxation and is therefore entitled to
15% preferential tax rate for the PRC EIT for three years
starting from 2013. During the year ended 31 December
2016, it has been approved by Zhejiang Finance Bureau,
Administrator of Local Taxation of Zhejiang Municipality
and Zhejiang Municipal office of the State Administration
of Taxation for extending three more years to 2018.
Accordingly, the tax rate for Singlee Technology is 15%
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Re B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (Cont’d)

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, the
applicable tax rate of Hangzhou Singlee Software
Company Limited (“Singlee Software"”), Beijing Singlee Yin
Tong Information Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Singlee”)
and Xin Yintong Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xin YinTong") is
25% for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Group had no estimated assessable profits arising
from Hong Kong during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

The tax (credit) charge for the year is reconciled to the
profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

8.

s (ER) BB (4)

RIBRBIDEMRGHE  BE_T—tF
&_;—A¢+_ﬂ:+—EK¢E'M
NEFFEBEFR AR (TFFMEED - bR
R ERE ég&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ”ﬂ(Ht?\%ﬁﬂﬁ
NarsRmE AR AR ([FiR@E]) i@
REH25% °

HRAEERBE-_FT—LtEFR_FT—
i—i—fﬂ:ﬂ——ﬁti&_ﬂzﬁﬁﬁéé/’%éi
At ERTEN - ML ERF BN ETE
hEE -

AREFHE (BR) HEFABREREM
EEBEKRZBRHANGEN 2 EEROT

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARET T
Profit before tax FR 75 AT A 14,200 8,944
Tax charge at enterprise income tax AR EFTS R E15%
rate at 15% (2016: 15%) (Note) —T—RF :15%)
SAEZBIER N (M) 2,130 1,342
Tax effect of income not taxable 7FT§%)‘%H5U\Z
for tax purpose s (1,108) (606)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ks
for tax purpose Mg E 1,657 795
Under provision of tax in prior years BEFERBERETRE 345 255
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ﬂiﬁEE HIBEE 2 ST E 96 130
Utilisation of tax losses previously not ERABTAREARAMIERBE L
recognised M2 (4,718) =
Tax (credit) charge for the year AEEHE (KEe) 8 (1,598) 1,916
Note: Applicable income tax rate of 15% (2016: 15%) represents the Hiat - BRAEEFEERI5% (ZZT—~F  15%) R

AEMBARF MBI ZBEAEHRRE - &
REABREEELERE D BRG] ©

relevant income tax rate of Singlee Technology, the subsidiary of the
Company which generates majority of the Group's assessable profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging

(crediting) the following items:

9. AEFEEFN

AER@MENER (GrA) TSR -

2017 2016
—E—+tF —EREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFT

Salaries, wages and e IERHEMEIRER

other staff benefits 26,120 18,765
Retirement benefits schemes RN ET BIHERR

contribution 1,301 1,124
Equity-settled share-based payment — F&#E 45 E DA & B 0E A 20 S

expenses 2,589 810
Total staff costs (Note) BIp AR (Hit) 30,010 20,699
Depreciation of property, WE - WEREETE

plant and equipment 789 871
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEE 513 366
Auditor’s remuneration ZENRDEN & 811 532
Research and development expenses TR AR 2 35 A

recognised as expense

—included in cost of sales — BETABEERAE 6,054 7,090
Recovery of trade receivables FEW B 5 BR BORL (B %5 1B

previously impaired (1,077) (440)
Cost of inventories recognised ERART 2 TFERA

as an expense 1,258 3,880
Interest income FEWA (21) (12)
Government grants T fH G

— value-added tax refunds — IBETR (1,462) (1,593)
Waiver of other payables N H b FET RRIE (26) -

Note: Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Re B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EERE&STHA B35 M
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments for the year, RIEEAR LR AI R HER P eE
disclosed pursuant to applicable Listing Rules and CO, is REBAFEZEZRERTTRABHH
as follow: R
2017
—E-tF
Retirement Equity-settled
benefits share-based
schemes payment
Fees Salaries contributions expenses Total
RELE
BIRER URABER
Fiok e HarE DENF &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai BERE L L - 83 4 - 87
Mr. Cui Jian EREE - 414 4 - 418
Mr. Hung Ying AR - 350 4 169 523
Mr. Lin Xue Xin (Note) WEH L E (HiT) 48 248 59 156 511

Independent non-executive BIuEHTES

directors
Mr. Pao Ping Wing IR EE 83 - - 17 100
Mr. Thomas Tam HEE L E 83 - - 17 100
Mr. Lo King Man ESXEE 83 - - 17 100
297 1,095 n 376 1,839
Note: Mr. Lin Xue Xin was appointed as executive director of the company Wit MBFREER -+t FHREZERES - +
during the year of 2017, the emoluments disclosed above include MEBETMRERRARARESIIEREE 2
those for his services as employee prior to becoming the director FE o MBI ETNRARARITHAER - & it
of the company. Mr. Lin Xue Xin is also the chief executive officer FMEEEEEITBARNTH -

("CEO") of the company and his emoluments above includes those
for services rendered by him as CEO.
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d)

10.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

ESNESTHRAEHM (&)

2016
ZE-NF

Retirement Equity-settled

benefits share-based

schemes payment
Fees Salaries contributions expenses Total

RiEEE

RIKEFI PARRAD AT
e e G DEG CEl
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ANEEFT ANEEFT AEEFT AREFT

Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Hung Yung Lai RERIE - 82 4 - 86
Mr. Cui Jian EREA - 413 45 - 458
Mr. Hung Ying RRBRE - 318 40 80 438
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors

Mr. Pao Ping Wing LS 82 - - - 82
Mr. Thomas Tam HEELE 82 - - - 82
Mr. Lo King Man ESXkLE 82 - - - 82
246 813 89 80 1,228

The executive directors’ emoluments were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. The independent non-
executive directors’ emoluments were for their services as

directors of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. One of the directors, Mr.
Hung Yung Lai, has waived remuneration of RMB786,000
in total at the end of 2017, of which RMB41,000 is
related to waived remuneration for year 2017.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED ¥ F## (£H) RBERQE

WTEEFME XN BEARARR R AEEE
BREEREORS - BUYIFATESRH
MR BARREEREERNRY -

HE-_ZT—+tRk-_ZT—R"F+-_A=+—
BIEFE  AEBUEREANESETEH
B VE 5 % ] E A0 A AN 58 [ 31 00 A 2N 5 (B B
ZHRMIAEREREBIE 2 fE o Hh—
BEE RREBELRE RZE—tFEHR
BREMNE 2 FBHEARET86,0007T -
HFRA—ZE—LtFNHFSHNABARYE
41,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ra BB R R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

11. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included two (2016: two) executive directors of the
Company, whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining three
(2016: three) individuals were as follows:

1. EEME

FEBRIEERHFALIBEMRME (ZF
—RFMB) ARARRITESE - HHM
EFfALXEENERF - BT =RAL
(Z2—RF: =8) 2FMOT :

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMTF T AREFT

Salaries and other benefits e MEMmEF 1,110 1,150

Contribution to retirement RKTEFET SR

benefits schemes 120 95
Equity-settled share-based fig e 4 B DARR (9 AR BT SR B 2

payment expenses 609 185

1,839 1,430

Their emoluments were individually within the Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$")1,000,000 band.

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

1% S & B 2 Bl TR B 1,000,000,2 &
EA e

HE-_Z2—+tFR_ZFT—-—X"F+=H
= tT—HLFE AEEHERAEES
AT EAEHMERRSI EMARE
B MAAREBR 2 R ERBE X =B
B2fHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

12. BRRWE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share RRARHEAARGESRER LB KT
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the RTINS ETE

following data:

2017 2016
S P
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARET T

Profit for the year attributable

ARBEAANBIEFE

to owners of the Company R E A MBI
for the purposes of basic and FEAE S RS
diluted earnings per share 15,798 7,028
2017 2016
—E—+tF A=
‘000 ‘000
FiK T
Number of shares BHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary BEstEEREARANZT 2
shares for the purpose of basic TmAR e T #
earnings per share 864,430 864,430
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEBa L BIREBRENE
shares — Share options 2,533 3,571
Weighted average number of REstEBRE S 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of TS A N S 15 85
diluted earnings per share 866,963 868,001
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year BE-Z—+tF+-A=+—RHLFE -
ended 31 December 2017 does not assume the exercise of BlREFEREITSEAE_ZSTLFER
2007 Option, 2010 January Option, 2010 August Option, B —_ZE-TF-ABERE T -TF
2011 February Option, 2015 May Option and 2017 April NAERE —T——F_HAEkRE =
Option (as defined in note 25) because the exercise prices E-NFRLABKRER_ZE—+FHAR
of those options were higher than the average market Mgt (anptsE25mat) - BR—ZT—+FiE

prices for 2017.

LRI TRER SN TS FIOER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Re B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont’d)

13.

12. 3RW= (&)

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year

ended 31 December 2016 does not assume the exercise of
2007 Option, 2010 January Option, 2010 August Option,
2011 February Option and 2015 May Option because
the exercise prices of those options were higher than the

average market prices for 2016.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BE-T—AE+-AST—AILEE-

RIS W 0 B A

— ==

T FBK

B -TF-AEkE- ——ZF
NBEEE  —T——F - ABRER—
T-hERAEKRE BR-Z—F"F&
L BRI TIE B AR M A TG T (B -

13. 1% - BERRE

Computer
Leasehold and related Motor
Buildings Improvements equipment vehicles Total
e EfR
gF mEEE HERE L] At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ABKETT ARETT AR¥TT ARETT ARETT
CosT A
At 1 January 2016 RZE—-~F—A—H 6,479 3,573 7,362 1,369 18,783
Additions 0 - - 88 20 108
Disposals & - - - (43) 43)
At 31 December 2016~ RZZE—AE+-A=1+—H 6,479 3,573 7,450 1,346 18,848
Additions il 5,923 102 411 360 6,796
Disposals HE - (125) (924) (208) (1,257)
At 31 December 2017  RZZ—+F+=A=1+—A 12,402 3,550 6,937 1,498 24,387
DEPRECIATION il
At 1 January 2016 RZE—~"F—A—H 411 3,132 6,344 604 10,491
Provided for the year RERE 293 91 361 126 871
Eliminated on disposal & E 3 - - - (39) (39)
At 31 December 2016 ~ RZZE—REF+-_A=+—H 704 3,223 6,705 691 11,323
Provided for the year RERE 404 91 177 177 789
Eliminated on disposal &R - (125) (924) (42) (1,091)
At 31 December 2017  RZZ—+F+=-A=1+—-A 1,108 3,189 5,958 766 11,021
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2017  R=Z—+4+-A=1+-H 11,294 361 979 732 13,366
At 31 December 2016~ R=Z—R4E+-A=1+—-H 5,775 350 745 655 7,525
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, using straight-line method, at the following rates

per annum:
Buildings Over 20 years
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term

of lease or 5 years
Computer and related equipment 20% - 30%
Motor vehicles 10% - 20%

The buildings are situated on leasehold land in the PRC
and held under medium-term lease.

The buildings with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB11,086,000 (2016: Nil) have been pledged to secure
borrowings of the Group (see note 23). The Group is
not allowed to pledge these assets as security for other
borrowings or to sell them to another entity.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iRl#&# (58) R{AERAD 7

13. 3% - BMENZRE (B)

ERBERYE  BEMREEEB G
At AIE A F R PA B 0R IR T 51 F R
HAA - e RE G RISREE

g 209F LA £
HEMEERE THEFHF

(AEE & B%E)
B R AB ARG 20%E30%
Ex] 10%%20%

ZEFURPEAMEEL - B
REAHE A -

REEABEN AR ARKE11,086,0007T (=
E-RE:B)MNETEFEEER - U
WEETAEEMRITER (RMFE23) -
REFENGEAELEEER/AMERD
ERIBELELEMERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Re B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. B &=
Development
costs
HBEA
RMB’000
AREFT
cosT A
At 1 January 2016, RZZE—RF—H—H " 15,181
31 December 2016 —E—R"F+ZA=1+—H
and 1 January 2017 ;Z_E—+F—H—H
Additions 0 4,532
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=+—H 19,713
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT i eH RORE
At 1 January 2016 WZZE—RF—H—H 13,013
Amortisation for the year NS S 366
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—ARF+=ZA=+—H 13,379
Amortisation for the year IREFEEE SR 513
At 31 December 2017 R-_E—+F+=_A=+—H 13,892
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2017 N—_TE—+EFE+_A=+—H 5,821
At 31 December 2016 RZE—ARF+_A=+—H 1,802
The development costs have finite useful lives of 5-10 FBEXNAZEEFERFHRSEI10F - RE
years, which are amortised on a straight-line basis. ARELVEEEGY o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

15. DEFERRED TAX ASSET

The following are movements of the deferred tax asset
recognised from the tax losses during the years:

15. ELEHRIBEE S

AT RAFERBERERNELCHEE
ENEBER

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARET T

At beginning of the year REA
Credit to profit or loss RiBRKR AL
At the end of the year RER

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately RMB43,606,000 (2016:
RMB69,688,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
RMB12,953,000 (2016: Nil) of such losses. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
RMB30,653,000 (2016: RMB69,688,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

The unused tax losses will expire in the following years:

1,943 -
1,943 -

RBERR  AEEEARBABRBERLY
B AR #43,606,00000 (ZZ—7RF A
K #69,688,0007T) AJ 4K $5 K 2K am 7 o 5t
ZEBECERAEEHBEEEAARY
12,953,000 (ZZF—RF : T) - HRE
ETERIAR IR AR - REREBABLTA
R#30,653,0000C (ZZE—RF: AR
69,688,0007T) ABEERIBE E ©

AREFZ RBAHBER 2 ZHAE W
T

2017 2016

—2-tF AN

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT AR FT

2017 - 29,582
2018 13.777 17,517
2019 8.776 14,871
2020 6,650 6,854
2021 808 864
2020 13,595 -
Total unused tax losses RE AWM BEIEERE 43,606 69,688
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ra BB R R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

16. INVENTORIES 16. 7&

2017 2016
—E—tE —TE—RF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Finished goods BIRK 446 427

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. BRE 5 Rk HA BRI
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFIT
Trade receivables e E 5 AR K 46,352 37,301
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REEEE (581) (1,658)
45,771 35,643
Other receivables and prepayments A FE U BR SR R FEA SR IE 5,219 5,740
50,990 41,383

Other receivables and prepayments mainly include advance
to staff for daily operation, rental and utility deposits and
others.

Customers are generally granted with credit period
ranging from 120 - 180 days. The Group may, on a
case by case basis and after evaluation of the business
relationship and creditworthiness, extend the credit period
upon customer’s request.

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date
of trade receivables net of allowances at the end of the
reporting period:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

17. EWE S R EMIRR (&)

AT EMREWNE SRR (FREE
&) NERBME D ZREDT -

2017 2016

—F—£F  CFAF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFE  ARETT

0 - 120 days 0£120K 35,177 29,014
121 - 180 days 121£180K 850 242
181 - 365 days 181&365K 3,044 1,079
Over 365 days 365K E 6,700 5,308
45,771 35,643

Before accepting any new customer, the Group conducts
investigation or research on the creditworthiness of the
new customer and assesses the potential customer’s credit
quality and defines credit limits by customer. The trade
receivables which are neither past due nor impaired mainly
comprise the receivables due from the PRC state-owned
and local commercial banks with good repayment history.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors
with the aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB9,744,000 (2016: RMB6,387,000) which have been
past due as at the end of the reporting period for which
the Group has not provided for impairment losses. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED ¥ 7&# (5£H) RHABRAF

EEMEMHELA  AEEGRHE LM
RMEPZEEMFMEEREFP ZEEE
RNEERPZEREE - RaH= KR
BZREEZERTZEREMREERCTE
Rz BBA L5 B ERITZBEER

e
N

BERTEEEKRESERAAEGERER
BEH AR, 744,0000T (ZZ—7RF : A
R #6,387,000) 2 EW R - R &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ra BB R R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

BB MERREZ BKE 5 RK 2 Rk

17. BREZ R EMRR (&)

impaired: T  :

2017 2016
—E—+F AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
181 — 365 days 181%& 365K 3,044 1,079
Over 365 days 365K F 6,700 5,308
9,744 6,387

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts R HE
2017 2016
—E—+F AN
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFr
1 January —H—H 1,658 8,933
Impairment losses reversed R ERERE (1,077) (440)
Amounts written off as uncollectible s~ AT e - (6,835)
31 December +—-—A=+—H 581 1,658

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are

individually impaired trade receivables with an

aggregate balance of approximately RMB581,000 (2016:
RMB1,658,000) of which the debtors were in financial

difficulties.

As at 31 December 2016, trade and other receivables of
approximately RMB55,000 (2017: Nil) were denominated

in United States dollar (“US$").
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZ_-ZF

—tFEF_H=+—HIFE

18. HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS 18. HEEBERE
2017 2016
—E—+F AN
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARKFT ABRBTF T
Investments in unlisted fund FELTTEESEE 305 707

19.

The unlisted fund is denominated in US$ and the
investment objective of the fund is to achieve capital
appreciation through investing in securities, ownership
interest and private equity investments offered publicly
or privately and in relation to energy and environmental
protection business. Fair value of the investment reflected
the fair values of the underlying assets of the fund,
which were provided by the counterparty financial
institution. The fair value is measured at Level 3 fair value
measurement (as defined in note 30).

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The Group’s bank balances and cash comprise bank
balances which carry interest at prevailing market saving
rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.35% (2016: 0.01% to
0.35%) per annum during the year ended 31 December
2017.

Certain of the Group’s bank balances and cash of
approximately RMB24,000 and RMB368,000 (2016:
RMB21,000 and RMB2,649,000) were denominated in
US$ and Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), respectively.
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THHERRESE
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M AEBZRTESNESBIEFANRK
WITMHFRFF E0.01EZ0.35E (=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Re B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21.

20. EHE S REMIRK

2017 2016

—E—+F AN

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥FT AE®TF T

Trade payables FERTE SRR 4,521 4,291
Deposits received from customers BEREFZE 19 87
Payroll payables & A<F B T % B 3,146 1,471
Other PRC tax payables H At E T B B IE 2,306 2,378
Other payables and accruals LAt & BR X 7,263 4,753
Total CEl 17,255 12,980

The following is an aged analysis based on invoice date of

trade payables at the end of the reporting period:

AT TBmEMRENEZERAAZZERH

Sl 2 BRI

2017 2016

—E—tF —T—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTF T AREFT

Within 90 days 90K LA 2,957 2,202
91 - 180 days 91£180K 187 757
181 — 365 days 181E365XK 683 542
Over 365 days 365K L 694 790
4,521 4,291

Trade and other payables of approximately RMB2,097,000
(2016: RMB806,000) were denominated in HK$.

AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts are denominated in HK$, unsecured, non-

interest bearing and repayable on demand.
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BB S REMRZKHARE2,097,0005T
—F—RF: AR®S806,0007T) JhiLE
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21. BNESRIE

ZRBEABTTAHE  RERR - 28 0A

%

WEREER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

22. AMOUNT DUE TO IMMEDIATE HOLDING

23.

22. BNEEZERQBNIA

COMPANY

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ABRET T

Amount due to immediate holding Bt — 2 EEER AT

company, Goldcorp Industrial Limited Goldcorp Industrial

Limited 11 12

The amount is denominated in HK$, unsecured, non-

interest bearing and repayable on demand.

REREE -

ZREABTTAHE  REER - 28 04A

BORROWINGS 23. &8
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T AREFT
Unsecured loans from a director (Note i) mIEMEREE (W) 53,964 50,090
Unsecured bank borrowings (Note ii) EIERIRITEE (W) - 5,992
Secured bank borrowings (Note ii) BEPRITEE (i) 11,000 -
64,964 56,082
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Carrying amount of the above borrowings e EEREEE T
are repayable: 88
Within one year —F AR 13,492 4,444
Within a period of more than one year but ~ —% A HETHBBMRE
not exceeding two years 15,456 4,026
Within a period of more than two years but  Ra A HERBBRE
not exceeding five years 8,084 17,476
Within a period of more than five years AFEE 27,932 30,136
64,964 56,082
Less: Amounts due within one year shown B IIARBBEER —FR
under current liabilities B8, 2 IR (13,492) (4,444)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities  FI| AZER BN & &2 K18 51,472 51,638

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED ¥ 7&# (5£H) RHABRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

23. BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

Notes:

(i)

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3

The exposure of the Group’s loans from a director and the
contractual maturity dates are as follows:

23. 88 (&)

it -

(i) AKEEEERHERNRRREQOIMBALT

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥FT ARETFT

Within one year 1517 2,492 -
Between one to two years 1224 15,456 3,582
Between two to five years 2E5%F 8,084 16,372
More than five years 5 1% 27,932 30,136
53,964 50,090

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal to

AEBEFEENERNXEE (BEENARAE)

contracted interest rates) on the Group’s loans from a director are as N
follows:
2017 2016
—g—tf “EAE
Effective interest rate: BEFR -
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE 3.25%-4.5% 3.25%-3.5%

The weighted average effective interest rate on loans from a director
is 3.42% (2016: 3.27%) per annum.

The loans from a director of approximately RMB41,774,000 (2016:
RMB43,900,000) are denominated in HK$, other borrowings are
denominated in the functional currency of the respective group
entity.

EEEBEZINETFHERANEAGFINE (ZT—X
F:327E) -

EEEEHARKL1,774,000T (ZZF—RF : HAR
#43,900,0007T) LABTEHE - EMhEE T AEREE

HEZY

b 1 i
BER”

sHE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

23. BORROWINGS (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(i) The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings and the contractual
maturity dates are as follows:

23.

B (&)
Wit ()

(i) AKBERTEENRBEAOIHANT

2017 2016
—E—tF —ZREF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR FT ARETFT
Fixed-rate bank borrowings: TEBRITEE -
Within one year 1R 11,000 4,000
Variable-rate bank borrowings: FERITEE -
Within one year 1586/ - 444
Between one to two years 15224 - 444
Between two to five years 2&E54 - 1,104
- 1,992

The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the Group’s borrowings are as follows:

AEBRTEENERANE (BEEREBAX) M
=

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF

Effective interest rate: B R R
Fixed-rate borrowings EEEE 4.82% 4.82%
Variable-rate borrowings FEEE - 7.50%

The weighted average effective interest rate on the bank borrowings
is 4.82% (2016: 6.01%) per annum.

The buildings with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB11,086,000 (2016: Nil) have been pledged to secure bank
borrowings of the Group. The buildings have been pledged as
security for bank loans.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED ¥ 7&# (5£H) RHABRAF

RITEEZNETHERMNEREF482E (ZF—X
F:6.01E) -

BREEATELO R ARKE11,086,0007T (ZF —K4F :

T)WETEFEEER  URERTAEENRTE
W BUAETERIBFERTRITEROER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, BR7
Number of shares Amount
RAGEE HE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E-tf —TRF —E-tf —E-RE
‘000 ‘000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
FiK Fi AREFT AREFT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SRAEIBTZEER
Authorised: ET
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BETZA=+—8H 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER :
At 1 January and 31 December R—=A—-BRkt+=-B=1—8 864,430 864,430 8,551 8,551

25.

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted on 27 August 2001 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to directors and eligible employees,
and has been expired on 27 August 2011. Under the
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may
grant options to eligible employees, including directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company. The Scheme would be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the adoption
date and have come to its expiration. All other respects of
the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and
holders of all options granted under the Scheme prior to
such expiry shall be entitled to exercise the outstanding
options pursuant to the terms of the Scheme until expiry
of the said options. As a result, a new share option
scheme which was approved on 28 February 2011 (the
“New Scheme”), take effect immediately after the expiry
of the Scheme. The principal terms of the New Scheme
are same with the Scheme.

25. LR AEBRNSRKS

RRBRZREEEERES

RArzERERE ([ZEE]) RZET
—FNAZTEHERN  TZENRER
EEZRAEAREER WERZZE——FN
AZ+tEHEm- REBEZHE - ARAIE
=M EREE (BREAAE RENW
BRARIZES) RUBERE  UREBAAQ
RIBRD - ZetBIHRMNE BRREN - BH
THEHBEKER - ZarElEX 2B HM
FTEHBEEEZEBN  BEZEEL 2
FrEERE ZFHE AR REIHR - B
FETEI 2GR - HEEB TR RETR
ZERE EEpTAEREDE - Bt
R-E——F A -+ \BCEHENTH
& ([3raT&81)) - REtElEme B A&
o Frat 2 F E R EZET AR -

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iF|& 4 (£H) BRAERAF

153



154

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(Cont’d)

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 28 February 2011 (the “SGM"), the
New Scheme mandate limit was refreshed so that the
Company was authorised to grant share options under
the New Scheme for subscription of up to a total of
81,184,000 shares, representing approximately 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
the SGM.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 11 May 2016 (the "AGM"), the
scheme mandate limit under the share option scheme of
the Company was refreshed again so that the Company
was authorised to grant additional share options for
subscription for a total of 86,443,000 shares under the
refreshed mandate limit, representing approximately 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date
of the AGM. The aggregate number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options that may be
granted under the refreshed mandate limit and upon the
exercise of the outstanding options previously granted is
not permitted to exceed 30% of the shares in issue at any
point of time.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
granted share options to 53 eligible participants (the
“Grantees”) to subscribe for a total of 86,440,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of
the Company pursuant to the New Scheme subject to the
acceptance of the Grantees.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iRl#&# (58) R{AERAD 7

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

25. R BERNSRR S (&)

RRBzRELSEBRESS (2)

BERERR _T——F A -+ /\BET
ZARNTIRRFRARE ([REFHNARE])
BBz EBRABR Mt E 2 X ERE
B ZIS RIERERBS T ERY
B TRERZ A £81,184,0000% It
- fﬁﬁg ﬂﬁéﬂx%%%uﬁ;\. HEAE 217
BEZAR4)10% o

BERER-_ZE—"FREA+—HETH
AR RBFAE ((RRBAFAE]) £
BBNETRARER  ARAEREETH
FTEIEELRBEEN - AARE L ER
%ﬁﬁﬁ%%%%vaﬁ%E%ﬁ%L

R A $£86,443,000/% B8 17 (R IR
@¢ﬁ25%$ AIEBITARANA910% o
EITERIBLEEINZE LR AR LA
EEREMATERER LM M AITER
W& T P RE R 1T RO IR D AR BN 1S B B 1]
B E TR 1DBI30% ©

HE " Z—+H5+-_A=+—HIEE
HfE - AARRBEFETEM3EEER
%ﬁi/\i(ﬁ%ﬁ/\n Es-gax (%%@%/@%
%) BRE URBRAARAEASE K
86,440,000 & I E 1E0.0178 7T 2 ¥ & il
% o

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF&£3§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Re B R R R MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 25. URMBEBARRS (&)
(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company AATRZREFEBRESS (&)
(Cont’d)

At 31 December 2017, the number of ordinary shares in RZEBE—tF+_A=+—H BBRER
respect of which options had been granted on 19 January —E-EF-A+NB(ZZE—ZF—A
2010 (“2010 January Option”), 16 August 2010 (“2010 BERED  —E-FTF/\A+XRB (=
August Option”), 28 February 2011 (“2011 February T-ZFEN\AEKRE] —T——F=A
Option”), 24 June 2013 (“2013 June Option”), 15 May “t+NBUZE——F_ABEKR#ED -
2015 (2015 May Option”) and 7 April 2017 (“2017 April —ZF—= E/\H +mE ((ZE—=%F
Option”) and remained outstanding is 199,260,000 (2016: NAERKRED —E—HAFAATAHAB
130,230,000), representing 23% of the total ordinary ( _Fﬁ—ﬂiﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂxﬁéﬁ M ZZ—4F
shares of the Company (2016: 15.1%) in issue at the end MAER(ZZ—tFmABRE] &
of the reporting period. Options granted on 9 October HEDRITECERE: PRk E@
2007 were expired during the year. B8 B 4199,260,0001) (= & — /N 4F ¢

130,230,000/ 13) * 15 R AR & BAR
EETEBREH 223% (ZF—RF -
15.1%) c RZEZTEF T ANARENE
A i A AN [E BB o

Options shall be exercised in the following manner: WEIREZRIL A T ORI TIR

Options granted to directors and employees on 9 R-ZEE+F+ANA  —F—FF—F

October 2007, 19 January 2010 and 16 August 2010 FtHAAR-E—ZFFNA+ARFEE

RIESHERE

e 5% of the options shall become exercisable upon o 5%ZIERIEAENIKE BHAEAZA
6-months of the date of grant FITE

e Additional 10% of the options shall become o FBIMO%MBREANETL A —E
exercisable upon the first anniversary of the date of FIEATITE
grant

e Additional 35% of the options shall become o SHN35%MEREANKL B HMA
exercisable upon the second anniversary of the date FEATITE
of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become o MTS0%MBREANKEAR=8
exercisable upon the third anniversary of the date of FRATITE
grant
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZ_-ZF

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

(Cont’d)

Options granted to directors on 28 February 2011

—tFEF_H=+—HIFE

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the o

date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become o

exercisable after 9 January 2012

Options granted to employees on 28 February 2011

25. R BERNSRR S (&)

RRBzRELSEBRESS (2)

R-E——F A+ NARFEEZHE
BRE

50% < fE A IR th A HAR] T 1718

EINSO% MBI EAN — T — —F —
AN B%&R] F1718

R-E——F_A-+NAEFESZHE

KRE

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the o

date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become o

exercisable after 12 January 2012

Options granted to directors and employees on 24

June 2013

50% < & B A N X B HIR AT T 1T
(:3

EINSO% MBI EAN — T — —F —
A+=—R®EAFI17E

R-E—=FANA-+HARFEERE

BZBKRE

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the o

date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become o

exercisable after 23 June 2014

Options granted to directors and employees on 15

May 2015

50% 2 & B AN X B BRI T 1T
(:3

EHHNS0% M BB AR E A —F — U F X
AZ-+=H%& 17

R-B-AFLATEARTEERES

ZBRE

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the o

date of grant

e Additional 50% of the options shall become o

exercisable after 14 May 2016

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iRl#&# (58) R{AERAD 7

50% 2 & A AN X B BRI T 1T
(:3

EEAINS0% Y BB AR HE B — NEFER
H+@E*%%T%ﬁﬁ
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Ra BB R R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 25. URMBEBARRS (&)
(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company AATRZREFEBRESS (&)

(Cont’d)

Options granted to directors, employees and R-ZE—+FMNA+tARFEE EER

consultants on 7 April 2017 B ZERE

e 50% of the options shall become exercisable on the o 50%BREANKEBBER TIT
date of grant &

e Additional 50% of the options shall become o ZEINS0%HIMEMREAN T — \FIM
exercisable after 6 April 2018 A7~B 75,\\%?5:71217@

Under the Scheme and the New Scheme, the exercise BEZTE RFE - (TEREHRAAAE

price is determined by the directors of the Company, and EEETE - BTNEANARFBRNONE D

will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price HE 2 WmE -« (iR H R EEER D H A

of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (i) the TEE 2R 2 FHRTE - Ri)AR AR

average closing price of the shares for the five business MZEBERzZERE -

days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

No consideration is payable on the grant of an option. PR 2 AR RE T = W RN 2 R(E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

(Cont’d)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Options granted to directors and employees on 9
October 2007, 19 January 2010 and 16 August 2010

25. LR AERNRRS (&)

RRBzRELSEBRESS (2)

R ARER ZFHBWT

R-BEtFTANR —F—FF—AF
THAR=FE-—FF/\F+AARTEE

RIESRIERE

Fair value
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date

RELHEH
BRESR REAH BES i eE ZRRME
2007 Option 09.10.2007 09.10.2007 to 08.10.2010 09.04.2008 to 08.10.2017 HK$0.368 HK$0.2253
“ETLERpE 09.10.2007 09.10.2007%£08.10.2010 09.04.2008%08.10.2017 0.368%7T 0.2253/7L
2010 January Option 19.01.2010 19.01.2010 to 18.01.2013 19.07.2010 to 18.01.2020 HK$0.200 HK$0.1330
—Z-TE-ARkkE 19.01.2010 19.01.2010£18.01.2013 19.07.2010%18.01.2020 0.200%7 0.1330/7
2010 August Option 16.08.2010 16.08.2010 to 15.08.2013 16.02.2011 to0 15.08.2020 HK$0.840 HK$0.5289
“Z-TF)\AkRE 16.08.2010 16.08.2010%15.08.2013 16.02.2011%15.08.2020 0.840/8 T 0528975 T

Option granted to directors and employees on 28

R-E——F-_A-F+/ARTFEERE

February 2011 BZERE
Fair value
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date
REHBEH
BRERR REAH 2 1 L] 7B AR
2011 February Option
2T fkkiE
Grant to directors 28.02.2011 N/A 28.02.2011 t0 09.01.2021 HK$0.730 HK$0.3308
RTES 28.02.2011 TEm 28.02.2011209.01.2021 07307 0.3308/7C
Grant to directors 28.02.2011 28.02.2011 t0 09.01.2012 10.01.2012 to 09.01.2021 HK$0.730 HK$0.3417
RYES 28.02.2011 28.02.2011%09.01.2012 10.01.2012209.01.2021 0.730# 7T 0347
Grant to employees 28.02.2011 N/A 28.02.2011 to 12.01.2021 HK$0.714 HK$0.3366
BTES 28.02.2011 TER 28.02.2011%12.01.2021 0.7147%7T 0336678
Grant to employees 28.02.2011 28.02.2011 to 12.01.2012 13.01.2012 t0 12.01.2021 HK$0.714 HK$0.3417
KTER 28.02.2011 28.02.2011%12.01.2012 13.01.2012£12.01.2021 071437 03MTHETL

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iRl#&# (58) R{AERAD 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

(Cont’d)

Option granted to directors and employees on 24

25. LR AERNRRS (&)

RABzRELSEBRESS (2)

R-E—=FANA-+HARFEERE

June 2013 BZBKRE
Fair value
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date
REHAH
BRERR REAH BEH L] e ZRRE
2013 June Option
TE-ZERRERE
Grant to directors 24.06.2013 N/A 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0506
KTE% 24.06.2013 Tam 24.06.2013%23.06.2023 0.1122%7 0.0506/87C
Grant to directors 24.06.2013 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2014 24.06.2014 to 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0522
BYE=Z 24.06.2013 24.06.2013%23.06.2014 24.06.2014%23.06.2023 0.112287 0.0522/ 70
Grant to employees 24.06.2013 N/A 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0506
BYEE 24.06.2013 TER 24.06.2013%23.06.2023 0.112287 0.0506/ 7T
Grant to employees 24.06.2013 24.06.2013 t0 23.06.2014 24.06.2014 t0 23.06.2023 HK$0.1122 HK$0.0522
KTIEE 24.06.2013 24.06.2013%23.06.2014 24.06.2014%23.06.2023 0.1122% 7 0.0522/7T

Option granted to directors and employees on 15

R-B-AFLATEARTEERES

May 2015 ZHBRE
Fair value
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date
REHAH
BRERR BREAH BEH :d] i@ ZRARE
2015 May Option
“Z-nEnARRE
Grant to a director 15.05.2015 N/A 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2648
RTEs 15.05.2015 TER 15.05.2015% 14.05.2025 04387 026487
Grant to a director 15.05.2015 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2016 15.05.2016 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2694
KTE% 15.05.2015 15.05.2015£14.05.2016 15.05.2016%14.05.2025 0.43%T 0.2694/ 7T
Grant to employees 15.05.2015 N/A 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2243
BYEE 15.05.2015 TEA 15.05.2015% 14.05.2025 04387 0.2243%7T
Grant to employees 15.05.2015 15.05.2015 to 14.05.2016 15.05.2016 to 14.05.2025 HK$0.43 HK$0.2372
ETEE 15.05.2015 15.05.2015514.05.2016 15.05.2016%14.05.2025 04387 0.2372787T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(Cont’d)

Option granted to directors, employees and

25. LR AERNRRS (&)

RRBzRELSEBRESS (2)

R-BE—tFHNFtHARTFEE - AR

consultants on 7 April 2017 B ZERE
Fair value
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price at grant date
REHAH
BRERR REAH BEE d] e ZRRE
2017 April Option
“Z-tFMARRE
Grant to a director 07.04.2017 N/A 07.04.2017 to 06.04.2027 HK$0.1820 HK$0.0865
BTES 07.04.2017 TER 07.04.2017%06.04.2027 018208 0086578 T
Grant to a director 07.04.2017 07.04.2017 to 06.04.2018 07.04.2018 to 06.04.2027 HK$0.1820 HK$0.0949
BYE=Z 07.04.2017 07.04.2017%06.04.2018 07.04.2018%06.04.2027 0.1820/ 7T 0.09493% 7T
Grant to employees and 07.04.2017 N/A 07.04.2017 to 06.04.2027 HK$0.1820 HK$0.0846
consultants
BFiEE RER 07.04.2017 TEm 07.04.2017%06.04.2027 0.1820/ 70 0.0846/4 7T
Grant to employees and 07.04.2017 07.04.2017 to 06.04.2018 07.04.2018 to 06.04.2027 HK$0.1820 HK$0.0920
consultants
BFEERER 07.04.2017 07.04.2017%06.04.2018 07.04.2018%06.04.2027 0.1820/8 7 0.0920/8 7T

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iRl#&# (58) R{AERAD 7
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Ra BB R R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZ_-ZF

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

—tFEF A=+ —HIFE

25. LR AERNRRS (&)

RABzRELSEBRESS (2)

(Cont’d)
The following table discloses the movement of the share TREBNR_Z—tFBERES
options during 2017:
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Expired Outstanding
at 1.1.2017 during year during year during year during year  at 31.12.2017
Option type BRESR RZB-—+F RZB—t#F
-A—H +=A=t+-RH
o R ATE RERRL RERTHR RERXH RERTIE i RATHE
‘000 ‘000 000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
¥ F F F F ¥
Granted to directors KTEZ
2010 January Option —E-TFE—-RBERE 1,800 - - - - 1,800
2011 February Option “T-—F-RBRE 65,000 - - - - 65,000
2013 June Option “E-=FABRE 40 - - - - 40
2015 May Option “T-AFRABRKE 1,900 - - - - 1,900
2017 April Option -t FNABRE - 3,430 - - - 3,430
68,740 3,430 - - - 72,170
Exercisable at the end of 2017 AR =ZT—+EFRKT{E 70,455
Granted to employees and KT ES RER
consultants
2007 Option — Employees “ERLERRE—ES 15,910 - - - (15,910) -
2010 January Option “Z-TF-ABRE
— Employees —[E&8 5,880 - - - - 5,880
2010 August Option —Z-3F)\ABkE
- Employees —[E& 2,360 - - - 2,360
2011 February Option “E-—FCAERE
- Employees —[EE 12,290 - - - 12,290
2013 June Option —E-=FNABERE
— Employees —E8 7,200 - - (1,000) - 6,200
2015 May Option —T-AFRABRE
— Employees —E& 17,850 - - - = 17,850
2017 April Option Tt FNABRE
— Employees —EE& - 37,200 - (500) = 36,700
2017 April Option -t FNABRE
- Consultants —Ef - 45,810 - - - 45,810
61,490 83,010 o (1,500) (15,910) 127,090
Exercisable at the end of 2017 AR =Z—+FKT{E 85,835
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS

25. LR AERNRRS (&)

(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company

(Cont’d)

The following table discloses

options during 2016:

the movement of the share

RRBzRELSEBRESS (2)

TREBN-E—AF2HEEES -

Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Expired Outstanding
at 1.1.2016 during year during year during year during year  at 31.12.2016
Option type BREER RIB—RF RIB—RF
-A—-H +T=A=t-8H
e RATHE RERFE RERTE REREXN RERFH HRTE
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
F F F F F F
Granted to directors RTES
2010 January Option —T-TE-RBRE 1,800 - - - - 1,800
2011 February Option “T-—F-RABRE 65,000 - - - - 65,000
2013 June Option “E-=F ABRE 40 - - - - 40
2015 May Option “Z-nERRBERE 1,900 - - - - 1,900
68,740 - - - 68,740
Exercisable at the end of 2016 AJR =T —NEKTE 68,740
Granted to employees KTEE
2007 Option T FRRE 17,760 - - (1,850) - 15,910
2010 January Option —E-TF—-RERE 6,580 - - (700) - 5,880
2010 August Option —Z-2E)\RBRE 2,980 - - (620) - 2,360
2011 February Option —E——F - AERE 12,970 - - (680) - 12,290
2013 June Option —E2-=E RBERE 8,200 - - (1,000) - 7,200
2015 May Option “2-nERRBERE 19,500 - - (1,650) - 17,850
67,990 - - (6,500) - 61,490
Exercisable at the end of 2016 TR =T—AFKIT{E 61,490

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED ¥ F## (£H) RBERQE
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS TRANSACTIONS 25. URMBEBARRS (&)
(Cont’d)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company AATRZREFEBRESS (&)
(Cont’d)

Options were priced using binomial option pricing model. BREDUN B BREEEE{EE -
The inputs into the model were as follows: R 2B ABET

2017 April Option
“E-tFNABRE
Granted to
Granted to employees and

directors consultants

RFEE BTFEEREH
Share price i B HK$0.18208 7t HK$0.182058 T
Exercise price B HK$0.1820/%8 7t HK$0.1820/& T
Expected volatility TEHRR 1@ 66.9840% 66.9840%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B & 0.000% 0.000%
Sub-optimal factor RERTF 2.8 2.2
Risk-free interest rate 1 P £ 1.4741% 1.4741%
The volatilities adopted were based on average annualised E TR IR AR A B R AR BB T R
standard deviations of the continuously compounded AR ARNEERBRENFERA D
rates of return of the share prices of the Company and WENFHFEREERTH -
comparable companies with similar business nature of the
Company as of the valuation date.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group BE-ZT—+tF+-A=+—HLFE -
recognised the share-based payment of approximately AEESFHMES  EERERKXTER
RMB376,000 (2016: RMB80,000), RMB2,213,000 (2016: HIERARDBERMTRO/ARYK
RMB730,000) and RMB2,919,000 (2016: Nil) for share 376,0007T (= & — X% : A R #80,000
options granted to directors, employees and consultants JC) ~ AR#2,213,0000T (Z & — N &F ¢
respectively. AR #730,0007T) & A K#2,919,0007T

—EREE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

26. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 26. HEAE

The Group as lessee

AEBEEREEA
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFTT ARBTIT

Minimum lease payments paid under FRKEHENRE

operating leases during the year HE I

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:

2,542 2,283

RBEHR > NEERBEEERNHE
TRz EEHEARBRRERES
3 HBIHz 2T

2017 2016

—EB—tF —_ET-REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FIT AREFT

Within one year —FRX 1,675 1,075
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEFRF 129 -
1,804 1,075

Leases are negotiated and fixed for terms of two years
(2016: one year).

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED ¥ 7&# (5£H) RHABRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from details of the balances with related parties
disclosed in notes 21, 22 and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into the following
related party transactions during the year:

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

27. BE

RS

B TR A M RARMERA21 - 22 %23/
BB AR AEBRFERETUT
BERRS

FEEEEAEMHE

AFEEERFEEEE KRB ZEE M
T

2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARET T
Short-term employee benefits EHESRET 3,015 2,757
Retirement schemes contributions benefits  3RURIEFIFT 2T 273 260
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses % #& 45 & A9 A 2t
TR 1,498 434
4,786 3,451
Rental expenses Hemx
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Rental expense paid to Sing Lee SATET A B B O
Pharmaceutical Import & Export Co., Limited AR A AIHHAE
for lease of office premises BES 524 540

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had commitments
of approximately RMB262,000 (2016: RMB280,000) for
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for the next year in respect of office
premises leasing with a related company, Sing Lee
Pharmaceutical Import & Export Co., Limited, which the
director, Mr. Hung Yung Lai, has 50% equity interest with
joint control.

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

28.

29.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group contributed 5% of relevant payroll costs to
the MPF scheme, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000, which contribution is matched by
employees.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes operated by
the respective local governments in the PRC. The Group
is required to contribute 27%-28% of payroll costs to
the schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to these schemes is to make the
specified contributions.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the
reporting period are set out below.

28.

29.

RKER TS

AEESARBEENAEREEEER
HIERTERETE - ZAtE 2 EERAKE
LEENHABAE THEEARESE
B REBERBHIERTES ST IEZH#
AREEITERAN (LR AE%30,000) Z
5% @ Mg & 2 KL R IR -

AEBTHFBRZEEE AHFPEFH K
FEErRAREREREFNFEIZKE -
NEBEAEGFHIR AR 227%ZE28% B R M
FEMBUAEARKEZES - AEEY
B CEMRAEDFE MK -

RRBMB AR ZH1B

AEBME R BNERE R ZFIEEH 0
™o

Country of
incorporation/
establishment/

Particulars of
issued and fully
paid share capital/

Proportion of
voting power

Proportion of
ownership interest

Name of company operations registered capital held by the Company for 2017 and 2016 Principal activities
HMAL/ HL/ BRIRBERE/ KREREZ RIB-tER
NEER 2EER aER S SELA) E-REEREAE  IEEH
2017 2016 Direct Indirect
Bt —Z-R HE [GE3
Sing Lee Electronics (B.V.I) Co.,  British Virgin Islands 715 shares of 100% 100% 100% - Investment holding
Ltd. (“Singlee BVI")! US$1 each
Sing Lee Electronics (B.V.1) Co, HBRLZES TRERAER REARR
Ltd. ("#FFBvI")! 1R B
Singlee Software? PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - 100% Development and sales of
US$4,325,500 software products, sales of
related hardware products and
provision of technical services
DN B 4,325,500% T REMFERHER - HEABR
HER HER - D RRAE R RE

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED ¥ 7&# (5£H) RHABRAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

29. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Cont’d)

Country of
incorporation/
establishment/

Particulars of
issued and fully
paid share capital/

Proportion of
voting power

Proportion of
ownership interest

29. RRABIMBR B 2FH1E (&)

Name of company operations registered capital held by the Company for 2017 and 2016 Principal activities
HBAL/ AL/ BEIREARRE/ KREREL RZZ-tER
NEER EEER dMER RS REELA “E-REREASM  IEXE
2017 2016 Direct Indirect
—2-t ZER E& GE3
Singlee Technology? PRC Registered capital ~ 100% 100% - 100%  Development and sales of
US$6,714,000 software products, sales of
related hardware products and
provision of technical services
AR i 6,714,000% 7 RENBERNER  HERBE
HfER HER - RERHRTRE
Beijing Singlee® PRC Registered capital - 100% - 100% Inactive
RMB1,000,000
IEREH ¢ G AR¥1,000,0007 taez
HfER
Xin YinTong? PRC Registered capital ~ 100% 100% - 100%  Development and sales of
RMB100,000,000 software products, sales of
related hardware products and
provision of technical services
b4 G AR%100,000,00070 REMHEERNER - HERER

HMER

! Singlee BVI is a limited liability company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

2 Singlee Software and Beijing Singlee are wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

3 Singlee Technology and Xin YinTong are sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in the PRC.

4 Beijing Singlee was de-registered in November 2017.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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30. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, unsecured loans from a director and
bank balances and cash, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising share capital,
share premium, accumulated losses and other
reserves.

The directors review the capital structure on a semi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iRl#&# (58) R{AERAD 7

—tFEF_H=+—HIFE

30. EXER Kk EmESE

%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R R MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZ_-ZF

EENWEHK

(a) EXERERE

AEEER AR TRRAEEZ
ERAUSEES LB BECAE
K8 A A 4 7 M T A 25 R K
%o mEEFLE  AEHYBEE
BT -

REBvEARERERBRITE
E EEMESEERRITABRR
ERARFHBARMGERAE (A B
TR -~ IR afE - REtEEREAM
) -

EEB¥F-ARIELARE - ER
BEZ—#n  EFEEEELAKA
REEBRHEARNEE R - AN E
BIRBES 2 EE  BRMRE
BITHBARBITHESLELRE
BHFRFEEBBEARRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

30. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(b) Categories of financial instruments

(c)

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3

30. EAER KR EREMREEE A RER
(%)

(b) I AR

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARET T

Financial assets THEE

Loans and receivables (including bank ER N EWEE (B

balances and cash) IRITEERNIRS) 80,631 62,399
Held for trading investments HBEEEIRE 305 707
80,936 63,106

Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost B EHAA 82,377 69,866

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, held for trading investments, bank
balances and cash, amounts due to directors, amount
due to immediate holding company, trade and other
payables and borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (interest rate risk, currency risk
and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

() TREMEERNRBE

AEEZEMIABRERE S RHE
RN FHEEERE - RITHEBRK
Re BNEERA BHERER
NAEIFIA - BN E H R EMERFA R
BE ZEeMIAZFEREMT
IR - EMZESR T AMEREZRER
BEMSER (FXRER  S¥ER
REMERRR) EERBRMREHE
TR o B REINEDREZF AR 2K
RENTX - EEBEEREREZS
R\ R ATEIR AT A B R BB 2 F A E
MR IR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

30. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 30. EXREPE R et ERERE B R
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES ® (&)
(Cont’d)
(c) Financial risk management objectives and (00 SREREEAENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)

Market risk mEEE

(i)  Currency risk () EEREE
The Group has bank balances and cash, trade RITEHRERE  ENESRE
and other payables, amounts due to directors, thERR - ENEERIE - ENE
amount due to immediate holding company BERRARFEBEREEUETR
and borrowings denominated in US$ and HKS$, BT (uxi?féiﬁ%ﬁiiﬂﬁﬁa%?
currencies other than the functional currency RBIEER) ;HE - A% HE
of the respective group entities, which expose //\7%13*9\\@?7& o REE BRI
the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group BAEMINE SRR - AT - B
currently does not have a foreign currency BESERINERI  VERE
hedging policy. However, the management EEREROINE R o

monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure when the need arises.

The carrying amount of the foreign currency RS ERAINESTENEE A
denominated monetary assets and monetary E&E%E%E’UEEETEQDT-
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:
2017 2016
—E—-tF —E-RE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =L 8E =0
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT
us$ e 24 - 76 -
HK$ AT 368 44,207 2,649 45,755
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

30. EAER KR EREMREEE A RER
(%)

30. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and () sRIEREEBENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont'd) TSRk (&)
(i) Currency risk (Cont'd) () EMREE (&)

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3

The following table details the sensitivity to
a 5% (2016: 5%) change in the RMB against
US$ and HK$. The 5% (2016: 5%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in the foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analyses of the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk at the end of the
reporting period have been determined based on
the adjustment of translation of the monetary
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2016: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive (negative) number
indicates an increase (decrease) in the post-tax
profit where RMB strengthens against US$ and
HK$. For a 5% (2016: 5%) weakening of RMB
against US$ and HK$, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax profit.

TRHAJAEEHAREHET
NETTIE REE5% (ZF— X
F:5%) MBKE - %5% (=
T—NF  5%) EEEERHE
SN BEE R 19 & 3 W] B B B B £R
MBURE LR - PG AHK
LR B N R ) B R D
THERBRERREEEERA
BRINEERNS%ES (—F
—NF i 5%) BB ZHE L
(B) ERBARBLEZTMET
THEZBERBEN Ofd) - A
REHLETRBTRESY (ZF
— N 1 5%) RBIBBRBR 5 M
PXARRIMBER T E -

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Change in the post-tax profit BRERRFIE(E
If RMB strengthens against US$ fid AR ¥ ETTIHE (1 3)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ MARB B THE 1,863 1,832
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

30. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)
(i) Currency risk (Cont'd)

This is mainly attributable to the net exposure to
outstanding foreign currency receivables, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables,
amounts due to directors, amount due to
immediate holding company and borrowings in
US$ or HK$ at end of the reporting period.

(if) Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate secured loans from
bank and unsecured loans from a director (see
note 23 for details).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable rate bank
balances (see note 19 for details) and borrowings
(see note 23 for details). The management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The directors consider that the cash flow
interest rate risk is insignificant, accordingly,
no sensitivity analysis were presented for both
years.

172 SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED i F|## (5£8) RAERAH

30. EXEmKkemEAREER KRR

R (%)

() EREAREEBNREE (&)

TS mEE (&)
() EEREE (&)

(ii)

HHERHRREREHREKRT
RERTTRAB TTRISNE FRUR  RTT
EHRERE  BNESREAME
FEBNEFEHE BENEERE
P X B R IR R AR 1 2 L B
FEER o

B & HE

AEEATTAFEARTEE
RARAERE FEE (BRI E
SEME23) BRI AR ERE
m -

REBTAZGETBRITHER
(FBRHE19) REE (FER
ffsE23) R R EF KEE -
EEESNUEREEHHEX
=R o

EERARLREFNEARLT
BA MWMFEEHERIGRE
R

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF&£3§



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ra BB R R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

30. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)
(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in unlisted funds. The
sensitivity analyses have been determined on the
exposure to the market price risks at the end of
reporting period. If the prices of the investments
in unlisted funds had been 5% higher or
lower, the post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2017 would have increased or
decreased by approximately RMB13,000 (2016:
RMB35,000) respectively as a result of the
changes in fair value on financial assets classified
as held-for-trading.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’'s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets, which is stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

CEXRREREEREEREEB BRI
xR (%)

EREREEENREE (&)

sk (&)

(iii)  ELAE (B T5 2 2

REBREFELMESIREMALE
BRAEBRRR AEBEDRFS
HAR M) T35 (B 18 R B s 1T RS
D MBEELTESRED
B EARTES%  HE=

—tF+—A=+—RHLEFEN
MERfEERFEEERER
EHEWWMﬁW¢mAE%
130%%( T—RF: ARK
35,0007%) °

=EmERE

RZZE—+tF+ZA=+—H &%
B AR 5 F AR Eﬁ%ﬁi&ﬁi
EHBEL MEHZ&ZAEER
EE\QQW%#R%%mW%E%
ReMEEZREME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

30. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

30. EXEREkEmEREE BN R
xR (%#&)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and () sRIEREEBENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products are made and services are provided
to customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group assesses the credit worthiness and financial
strength of its customers as well as considering prior
repayment history with the customers. Generally,
customers are granted with credit periods from 120
— 180 days and the Group usually does not require
collaterals from its customers. An ageing analysis of
trade receivables is set out in note 17.

Management makes periodic individual assessment as
well as collective assessment on the recoverability of
trade receivables based on historical payment records,
the length of the overdue period, the financial
strength of the customers and whether there are any
trade disputes with them. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk of 49%
(2016: 77%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s top five largest customers in
relation to the provision of technical support services
business segment.

The credit risk of the Group on liquid funds is limited
because the majority of the counterparties are the
PRC state-owned banks and local commercial banks
with good reputation.

SING LEE SOFTWARE (GROUP) LIMITED #iRl#&# (58) R{AERAD 7

=EmE (&)

RNEE T BB R BIRE miEE KR
BREETEBHEEEELHNES -

mMASB e EEPNEELER
MBENARZEBATPNBIRE
FAsk c B —MERNR1208 F
180EMEEH  MASE—RAE
KEPREER FHEAEBWE HEXR
HARER D ATH M7 o

EIEEERRENKLE ﬁﬁﬂﬁ~;

B BPMBENRBEEFEERD

& 0 HIRE S Bl e U R BE 1T R B
REBHE - RS ARFES

RB/AEEZEERBREAKRBEE -

REBEARGEEE - TEEETA
B REE49% (ZZ—RF 1 77%)
ZEREGFIAEFERAEE IR
BEPRE  WERKEBESRIEBETS R
RERMERGE 2 EBEHED

HRABIBF I REERFOH

BB RIT M A ERIT - AEER
muiﬂﬁifmgﬂ 2B R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

30. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

30. EAER KR EREMREEE A RER
(%)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and () sRIEREEBENREE (&)

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3

policies (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net assets
and net current assets of RMB25,350,000 and
RMB55,692,000 respectively. Given the net liabilities
position from the year of 2013 to 2015, the directors
of the Company have given careful consideration to
the going concern of the Group and reviewed the
Group's financial and liquidity position. With the
improved financial position and ongoing financial
support from a director, who is also the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company, for a period
of twelve months from the date of approving the
consolidated financial statements by the directors,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the Group will have sufficient funds to meet in full its
financial obligations as and when they fall due and
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.

mEBEDRME

RZB—+F+_A=+—80 &K
EEMEEFERTDEEFES
B A& A R #25,350,0007C & A R ¥
55,692,000t ° SR —_F —=F &
ZE-RAFHEFEERR  ARA
EEDTHZRASENBELER
o WEEMNAERENMBERREE
RN BEEVBRAKER —BE
F(HENMALREEEKIESRE) 1214
REMBIIE REBESHEGSY
BHRERBHET @ AHKE  A2F
EERAAEEBBEREESAERHY
EEED P BEAE  WEIRSEER
& ECEIR BRSBTS TR -

TRAAEBEZTEHESRAR
BRTIAERZIHEZFE - RRIIER
ERBERAEERE AR ESER
ZAMZRIBRERARE - LR
FIMEREERERE - ENXTH
RFBHENERT - KRN ESHE
KB HmERRME -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

30. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK 30. EXREPE R et ERERE B R
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES xR (&)
(Cont’d)

(c) Financial risk management objectives and () sRIEREEBENREE (&)

policies (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd) mEEEEE (&)
Liquidity risk table TREBEDEBRE
Weighted On demand Total
average or less undiscounted Carrying
interest rate than 1 year Over 1 year cash flows amount
i RERS, AURRE
FigFI= —FREE —EN0L RERE fREE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETFT AR¥TT ARETT
2017 —E-tF
Trade and other payables ERE S REMER - 17,077 - 17,077 17,077
Amounts due to directors [ERESFUE - 325 - 325 325
Amount due to immediate ENEEERDRFE
holding company - 1 - " 11
Unsecured loans from a director EEBEEEE 3.42% 2,799 67,317 70,116 53,964
Bank borrowings RITER 4.82% 11,530 - 11,530 11,000
31,742 67,317 99,059 82,377
2016 ZZRE
Trade and other payables JERE 5 R HEA R = 12,735 - 12,735 12,735
Amounts due to directors ENESHE - 1,037 - 1,037 1,037
Amount due to immediate JER B AR AR
holding company - 12 - 12 12
Unsecured loans from a director EEREZEE 327% - 66,397 66,397 50,090
Bank borrowings BITEE 6.01% 4,587 1,760 6,347 5,992
18,371 68,157 86,528 69,866
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ra BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZ_-ZF

30. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments

—tFEF_H=+—HIFE

30.

EEARRSRERE
% ()

EHEEHNEHK

(d ERMIENARERE

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets (i) FEEHEERTHBEEZA
and financial liabilities that are measured at REDREEEMEEZ LB
fair value on a recurring basis irE
The following table provides an analysis of TREEEEEUAR R EFFED
financial instruments that are measured at fair ERMITEZH  BREEARA
value on a recurring basis, on the degree to REFENAER Y SUERE -
which the fair values is observable.

2017
“E—tF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—-4 -t E=4 &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets at FVTPL BRBRRAABENERHEE
Held for trading investments BEIEBERE - - 305 305
2016
“ERF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— £ B At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets at FVTPL ERERERAAENESREE
Held for trading investments ~ #{EBE®RE - - 707 707

Details of the recurring fair value measurement

of the held for trading investments are set out in

note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

There were no transfers in and out from level 3

in both years.

Annual Report 2017 —Z—tF &3
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RE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 EHZ_-ZF

—tFET=A=F—

30. CAPITAL RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK

31.

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(d) Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Cont’d)

(ii) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at
fair value on a recurring basis (but fair value
disclosures are required)

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be classified in the group’s consolidated

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

HIFF/E

30. EXEREkEmEREE BN R
xR (%#&)

d) €MIENAAREE (&)

FEEEHBEEREHBEBZA
ARETURBEEMBREZ DL
EifE (BFEERERNAE)

(i)

EEZRRTAMBHRRER S
mﬂﬁ%&ﬁmﬂ%%ZEﬁ@ﬁéﬁiﬁ
RAEEE -

3. MEFRDELENEENYHIR

TRHFEAEEREBELTHNAEE
B BRERSLIRSED - WERDE
ENBERRSREME  HARKRER
EREARBGARERERTOELR
BEBHHRERE o

activities.
Amount due
Unsecured to immediate
Bank loans from  Amounts due holding
borrowings a director to directors company Total
(Note 23) (Note 23) (Note 21) (Note 22)
EIEH T EEER
BITEE EEfRE EREEHE PGk &t
(Bf=E23) (HE23) (PzE21) (HzE22)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF AREFT AREFT AREFr AREFT
At 1 January 2017 R-E—t&—HA—H 5,992 50,090 1,037 12 57,131
Financing cash flows BEHSRE 5,008 7,084 66 - 12,158
Non-cash changes: FReEY :
Foreign exchange HhEE i 3%
translation - (3,210) 8 (1 (3,203)
Waiver of amount due to AEENESEFTE
a director - - (786) - (786)
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+F+-A=1++-H 11,000 53,964 325 11 65,300
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Ra BB R R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

32.

33.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

On 30 September 2017, Mr. Hung Yung Lai, being the
Chairman, executive director and controlling shareholder
of the Company, waived the balance due to him of
approximately RMB786,000. The amount has been

capitalised as shareholder’s contribution.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

32. TBFBEERH

RRARERE -
RN 2 #E R H) s AR 786,0007T » %%
REEEESBRRERTUAERE -

RZZE—tFNA=+HB " EEELEE -

HITESERERER - #%

33. A\ BB R T

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ABREFIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KEH B AT 3,131 3,131
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E S 27,633 26,815
30,764 29,946
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TEfT IR 194 251
Held for trading investments BIEEERE 305 707
Bank balances and cash RITEBR NI S 308 2,580
807 3,538
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables HAth fE T BR 5K 2,037 741
Amounts due to directors JEEEFIR 325 1,037
Amount due to immediate holding company  FEfT & 12R% A &) 718 11 12
Borrowings BE 1,142 -
3,515 1,790
Net current (liabilities) assets e (BE) BEFE (2,708) 1,748
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRDAR 28,056 31,694
Non-current liability FRBEE
Borrowings BE 40,632 43,900
(12,576) (12,206)
Capital and reserves BEAXRREE
Share capital (Note 24) R&A (BitzE24) 8,551 8,551
Reserves (Note) fEE (faE) (21,127) (20,757)
(12,576) (12,206)
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RE B R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ-ZF—+F+_-_A=+—HIFFZ

33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

At 31 December 2017, the Company has net current
liabilities of RMB2,708,000 and net liabilities of
RMB12,576,000. The statement of financial position of
the Company is prepared on going concern basis as the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company agreed
to provide financial support for the Company to settle its
financial obligations when they fall due.

33. R R AR EK (&)

RZBE—+F+-A=+—HLEFE &K
RABBRBEEFELRFABINOAR
A K #2,708,0007T & A K #12,576,000
T ARAMPFBHRARZRBIFELEE
HEEE  BAARRARKERKRRERER
RR BRI S 2 BT W AR E R E

B HO AR

Note: Mt -
Share
Share Shareholder’s options Accumulated
premium  contribution reserve losses Total
13518 BRR B BRERE RitER &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
At 1 January 2016 W-B-~FE—A—R 158,608 - 31,953 (206,720) (16,159)
Loss and total comprehensive expense  ANEFEEB R 2 EFAY
for the year k| - - - (5,408) (5,408)
Lapsed of share options REF R ERRE - - (1,291) 1,291 -
Recognition of equity-settled BRRELEE AR, B
share-based payments ER - - 810 - 810
At 31 December 2016 RIE—RF
+-A=+—H 158,608 - 31,472 (210,837) (20,757)
Loss and total comprehensive expense  ANEEEER 2 EMY
for the year k] - - - (6,664) (6,664)
Shareholder’s contribution [EXESS - 786 - - 786
Lapsed/expired of share options REFRNBIH2E
(3 - - (3,176) 3,176 -
Recognition of equity-settled RIREEE ARG R
share-based payments EH TR - - 5,508 - 5,508
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+F
+ZA=+—H 158,608 786 33,804 (214,325) (21,127)
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